
 

Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

Thursday, 19 January 2012 at 10.00 am 
County Hall 

Membership 
 

Chairman - Councillor Dr Peter Skolar 
Deputy Chairman - District Councillor Dr Christopher Hood 
 

Councillors: Jenny Hannaby 
Don Seale 

 

C.H. Shouler 
Val Smith 

 

Keith Strangwood 
Lawrie Stratford 

 
District 
Councillors: 

Hilary Hibbert-Biles 
Susanna Pressel 

 

Rose Stratford 
Alison Thomson 

 

  
 

Co-optees: Dr Harry Dickinson 
 

Ann Tomline 
 

Anne Wilkinson 

 

Notes: There will be a pre-meeting at 9.00 a.m. for members of the 
Committee only 
Date of next meeting: 8 March 2012 

 

What does this Committee review or scrutinise? 
• Any matter relating to the planning, provision and operation of health services in the 

area of its local authorities. 
• Health issues, systems or economics, not just services provided, commissioned or 

managed by the NHS. 
 

How can I have my say? 
We welcome the views of the community on any issues in relation to the responsibilities 
of this Committee.  Members of the public may ask to speak on any item on the agenda 
or may suggest matters which they would like the Committee to look at.  Requests to 
speak must be submitted to the Committee Officer below no later than 9 am on the 
working day before the date of the meeting. 
 

For more information about this Committee please contact: 
Chairman - Councillor Dr Peter Skolar 
  E.Mail: peter.skolar@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
Committee Officer - Claire Phillips, Tel: (01865) 323967 

claire.phillips@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Peter G. Clark  
County Solicitor January 2012 

Public Document Pack



About the Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
The Joint Committee is made up of 15 members. Twelve of them are Councillors, seven 
from Oxfordshire County Council, and one from each of the District Councils – Cherwell, 
West Oxfordshire, Oxford City, Vale of White Horse, and South Oxfordshire. Three 
people can be co-opted to the Joint Committee to bring a community perspective. It is 
administered by the County Council. Unlike other local authority Scrutiny Committees, 
the work of the Health Scrutiny Committee involves looking ‘outwards’ and across 
agencies. Its focus is on health, and while its main interest is likely to be the NHS, it may 
also look at services provided by local councils which have an impact on health. 
 
About Health Scrutiny 
 
Health Scrutiny is about: 
• Providing a challenge to the NHS and other organisations that provide health care 
• Examining how well the NHS and other relevant organisations are performing  
• Influencing the Cabinet on decisions that affect local people 
• Representing the community in NHS decision making, including responding to 

formal consultations on NHS service changes 
• Helping the NHS to develop arrangements for providing health care in Oxfordshire 
• Promoting joined up working across organisations 
• Looking at the bigger picture of health care, including the promotion of good health  
• Ensuring that health care is provided to those who need it the most 
 
Health Scrutiny is NOT about: 
• Making day to day service decisions 
• Investigating individual complaints. 
 
What does this Committee do? 
 
The Committee meets up to 6 times a year or more. It develops a work programme, 
which lists the issues it plans to investigate. These investigations can include whole 
committee investigations undertaken during the meeting, or reviews by a panel of 
members doing research and talking to lots of people outside of the meeting.  Once an 
investigation is completed the Committee provides its advice to the relevant part of the 
Oxfordshire (or wider) NHS system and/or to the Cabinet, the full Councils or scrutiny 
committees of the relevant local authorities. Meetings are open to the public and all 
reports are available to the public unless exempt or confidential, when the items would 
be considered in closed session. 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print 
version of these papers or special access facilities) please 
contact the officer named on the front page, giving as much 
notice as possible before the meeting  

A hearing loop is available at County Hall. 
 
 



 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  
 

2. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note on the back page  
 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 18) 
 

4. Speaking to or Petitioning the Committee  
 

5. Public Health (Pages 19 - 56) 
10.15 

 Dr Jonathan McWilliam, the Director of Public Health for Oxfordshire, will present his 
fifth Annual Report. The presentation will be followed by questions from HOSC 
members. The Director’s Annual Report is attached. (JHO5) 

6. Community Mental Health Teams; update on progress and future 
plans (Pages 57 - 84) 

11.00 

 In 2010 the then Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire Mental Health NHS Trust consulted 
on plans to restructure community mental health provision. The aim of the restructuring 
was to ensure continued delivery of high quality effective patient centred mental health 
care to the adult population of Oxfordshire. That aim would be achieved “by basing 
service organisation on patient need and ensuring that the service model delivers: 
 

• Simplicity of patient pathways with the removal of artificial barriers 
• Accessibility 
• Continuity of care 
• Robust teams with the skills to meet the majority of patient needs from within the 

team, thus avoiding multiple onward referrals 
• Clarity of clinical responsibility 
• Clinical Leadership 
• Optimal utilisation of resource 
• Management locally and corporately which support the delivery of optimal care 

and reduce the burden of bureaucracy” 
 

The following officers from what is now Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust will 
provide an update on progress made since the reorganisation and on future plans for 
community mental health provision; 
 
David Bradley – Chief Operating Officer 
Jackie Thomas – Head of Service and Business Development 
Eddie McLaughlin – Divisional Director, Mental Health 
 



- 2 - 
 

 

The original report, excluding appendices, setting out the proposed changes and an 
update report are attached (JHO6a and b) 

7. Early Intervention Hubs and health matters (Pages 85 - 90) 
11.45 

 At the November 2011 meeting members of the HOSC asked to be informed of how the 
County Council’s new Early Intervention Hubs will deal with health issues relating to 
young people. 
 
Maria Godfrey, Early Intervention Manager, Children, Education and Families will 
present the attached paper (JHO7), and answer members’ questions. 

8. Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) programme 
and planned care disinvestment (Pages 91 - 94) 

12.15 

 QIPP is “a large scale transformational programme for the NHS”, instigated by the 
Department of Health. The intention is to improve the quality of healthcare delivered by 
the NHS in England, while at the same time making up to £20billion of efficiency 
savings by 2014-15. The savings are expected to be reinvested in frontline care. 
 
The attached paper (JHO8) titled, ‘Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention - 
how the NHS can protect and promote quality while releasing savings across the health 
system’ will be presented by Dr Stephen Richards and Alan Webb from the Oxfordshire 
Clinical Commissioning Group (OCCG) and Francis Fairman, Clinical Effectiveness 
Principal from the NHS Cluster (PCT). 
 
They will provide background to the QIPP programme and explain how QIPP will affect 
services and the planned care disinvestment programme.  

9. Oxfordshire LINk Group – Information Share (Pages 95 - 96) 
13.00 

 The regular update from the Oxfordshire LINk is attached (JHO9). Sue Butterworth, 
Chair of the Oxfordshire LINk, and Adrian Chant, LINk Locality Manager, will attend to 
answer questions. In addition Lisa Gregory from the Strategy and Performance team in 
Social and Community Services will attend to update members about the HealthWatch 
consultation and procurement for Local HealthWatch in the light of the decision of the 
Department of Health to delay implementation on HealthWatch until April 2013. 
 

10. Chairman’s Report  
13.20 

 The Chairman will report on meetings etc that have taken place since the previous 
HOSC meeting. 

11. Close of Meeting  
13.30 

  



- 3 - 
 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
This note briefly summarises the position on interests which you must declare at the meeting.   
Please refer to the Members’ Code of Conduct in Part 9.1 of the Constitution for a fuller 
description. 
 
The duty to declare … 
You must always declare any “personal interest” in a matter under consideration, i.e. where the 
matter affects (either positively or negatively): 
(i) any of the financial and other interests which you are required to notify for inclusion in the 

statutory Register of Members’ Interests; or 
(ii) your own well-being or financial position or that of any member of your family or any 

person with whom you have a close association more than it would affect other people in 
the County. 

 
Whose interests are included … 
“Member of your family” in (ii) above includes spouses and partners and other relatives’ spouses 
and partners, and extends to the employment and investment interests of relatives and friends 
and their involvement in other bodies of various descriptions.  For a full list of what “relative” 
covers, please see the Code of Conduct. 
 
When and what to declare … 
The best time to make any declaration is under the agenda item “Declarations of Interest”.  
Under the Code you must declare not later than at the start of the item concerned or (if different) 
as soon as the interest “becomes apparent”.    
In making a declaration you must state the nature of the interest. 
 
Taking part if you have an interest … 
Having made a declaration you may still take part in the debate and vote on the matter unless 
your personal interest is also a “prejudicial” interest. 
 
“Prejudicial” interests … 
A prejudicial interest is one which a member of the public knowing the relevant facts would think 
so significant as to be likely to affect your judgment of the public interest.  
 
What to do if your interest is prejudicial … 
If you have a prejudicial interest in any matter under consideration, you may remain in the room 
but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence 
relating to the matter under consideration, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the 
meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 
 
Exceptions … 
There are a few circumstances where you may regard yourself as not having a prejudicial 
interest or may participate even though you may have one.  These, together with other rules 
about participation in the case of a prejudicial interest, are set out in paragraphs 10 – 12 of the 
Code. 
 
Seeking Advice … 
It is your responsibility to decide whether any of these provisions apply to you in particular 
circumstances, but you may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



OXFORDSHIRE JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Thursday, 10 November 2011 commencing at 
10.00 am and finishing at 1.25 pm 
 
Present: 
 

 

Voting Members: Councillor Dr Peter Skolar – in the Chair 
 

 Councillor Jenny Hannaby 
Councillor Don Seale 
Councillor C.H. Shouler 
Councillor Val Smith 
Councillor Keith Strangwood 
Councillor Lawrie Stratford 
Councillor Susanna Pressel 
District Councillor Rose Stratford 
Dr Harry DickinsonDistrict Councillor Martin Barrett 
District Councillor Elizabeth Gillespie 
 

Co-opted Members: 
 

Dr Harry Dickinson 

Other Members in 
Attendance: 
 

 

By Invitation: 
 

 

Officers: 
 

 

Whole of meeting  Roger Edwards 
Jonathan McWilliam 

Part of meeting 
 

 

Agenda Item Officer Attending 
 See agenda 
 
The Scrutiny Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations 
contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting [, together with a schedule of 
addenda tabled at the meeting/the following additional documents:] and agreed as 
set out below.  Copies of the agenda and reports [agenda, reports and 
schedule/additional documents] are attached to the signed Minutes. 
 
 

62/11 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS  
(Agenda No. 1) 
 
Apologies were received from District Councillors Christopher Hood and Hilary 
Hibbert-Biles and Mrs Ann Tomline. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Councillor Elizabeth Gillespie substituted for Councillor Hood and Councillor Martin 
Barrett substituted for Councillor Biles. 
 

63/11 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - SEE GUIDANCE NOTE ON THE BACK 
PAGE  
(Agenda No. 2) 
 
Councillors Rose Stratford and Lawrie Stratford declared an interest as members of 
the Bicester Hospital League of Friends. 
Councillor Dr Peter Skolar declared an interest as a member of the Townlands 
Hospital League of Friends. 
Councillor Jenny Hannaby declared an interest as a member of the Wantage 
Hospital League of Friends. 
 
 
 

64/11 MINUTES  
(Agenda No. 3) 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on September 15th 2011 were agreed and signed 
as a correct record of the meeting. 
 
The following points were made: 
 
Item 56/11 – Councillor Strangwood commented that nobody from the NHS had 
been present at the meeting and so it was not possible for HOSC members to ask 
questions about changes to the gynaecology service at the Horton General Hospital. 
 
Councillor Hannaby asked when the proposed review of Alcohol services was likely 
to begin. The reply was, as soon as possible. 
 

65/11 SPEAKING TO OR PETITIONING THE COMMITTEE  
(Agenda No. 4) 
 
There were no requests to speak or petitions to present. 
 

66/11 PUBLIC HEALTH  
(Agenda No. 5) 
 
The Director of Public Health for Oxfordshire presented his report on the 
development of the new Health and Wellbeing Board (H&WB). Dr McWilliam 
stressed that the Board would provide an excellent opportunity for providing joined 
up solutions to health and social care issues. The Board must not be allowed to 
become a talking shop but must deliver change and set and ensure the achievement 
of realistic and meaningful targets.  
 
The HOSC would have a key role in scrutinising the work of the Board and ensuring 
that the focus on improving healthcare for the residents of Oxfordshire was 
maintained and that positive outcomes were achieved. 
 

Page 2



It is expected that the Board would have three main themes: 
 
i. Prevention 
ii. Breaking the cycle of deprivation 
iii. Joining up finances 
 
Of the four supporting Boards three; Children and Young People, Adult Health and 
Social Care and Health Improvement, would meet before March 2012 and clarify 
their membership, terms of reference and aims. The Public Involvement Board, to be 
chaired by the Chair of HealthWatch, would be developed over the next year. It 
would be important to take care to involve as wide a range of stakeholders as 
possible in the development of the Board. 
 
Finally Dr McWilliam stated that the Boards would not be adding layers of 
bureaucracy but would use existing mechanisms wherever possible. 
 
During the subsequent question and answer session the following points were made: 
 

• Minutes of the H&WB and supporting boards should be made available to the 
appropriate scrutiny committees and H&WB minutes should be included with 
the HOSC agendas. 

• Dr McWilliam would be invited to a future HOSC meeting to give a 
presentation on “prevention”. 

• To ensure that the Board is effective it should be expected to produce a work 
programme containing “practical deliverables” with local targets that could 
actually make a difference. The programme should contain the names of 
accountable officers/members together with dates for achieving targets. 

• The HOSC should examine the programme and monitor the achievement (or 
not) of the targets.  

• Concern was expressed over whether or not the Board was fully 
representative of the whole County. It was explained that the membership of 
the Board had been decided by the County Leaders’ Group (the Leaders of 
the County, District and City Councils). 

• Concern was also expressed that the new set up would lead to increased 
costs with more meetings and officer and member time and resources being 
used. It was pointed out that the level of bureaucracy should not be increased 
as the Children’s Trust and the Health and Wellbeing Partnership would be 
abolished and the Adult Health and Social Care Board would use existing 
management groups to undertake much of the work. Members remained 
sceptical. 

• It was noted that the Leader of the County Council was to chair the H&WB. 
Members of the HOSC questioned whether this was appropriate in view of the 
level of work that would be entailed on top of the Leader’s already heavy 
workload. Would it not be more effective to have a Cabinet Member for 
Health?  
It was pointed out that the Cabinet Member for Adult Services was 
responsible for both social care and health issues. However it was questioned 
whether, bearing in mind the additional level of responsibility that the County 
Council would have in future for health issues, one person could successfully 
combine responsibility for both.  

Page 3



 
Following the discussion members agreed: 
 

i. In view of the large workload involved, the HOSC would recommend 
that, at a future date, a new Cabinet post would be created of Cabinet 
Member for Health. 

ii. The HOSC would wish to see a report in twelve months time that would 
indicate the level of resources being devoted to the bureaucracy then 
compared with now. 

 
Dr McWilliam was thanked for his presentation and members wishes the new Board 
well. 
 
 
 
 
 

67/11 APPROPRIATE CARE FOR EVERYONE (ACE) PROGRAMME  
(Agenda No. 6) 
 
Prior to the presentation of the report Councillor David Turner, member for the 
Chalgrove Division asked a question specifically related to Watlington Care Home. 
Cllr Turner wished to know when the proposals in the ACE report were likely to be 
developed such that it would be possible to identify specific implications for parts of 
the community, e.g. Watlington Care Home. He also asked whether the private 
sector should be represented on the Programme Board. 
 
Mr Sinclair replied that there was no timetable set but that regular reports are being 
made to the Creating a Healthy Oxfordshire (CAHO) Board and that Councillors 
would be kept informed of progress. 
 
With regard to the Board; the aim had been to have a small and effective group that 
included commissioners, providers and clinicians.  
 
Mr Sinclair then presented his paper. He stressed that the aims of the ACE 
programme were for more people to be cared for at home with a consequent 
reduction in the number of beds in use in both acute and community settings. 
 
Beds need to be used more effectively and there is a substantial piece of work being 
done to identify how this could happen. Work is also being done to identify ways in 
which people could be helped to maintain their independence, to improve the use of 
pooled budgets and to improve communications.  
 
Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOC) has no single cause and the present situation of 
high numbers of blocked beds could get worse before it gets better. Extra investment 
is not yet delivering change and new services which are being developed have yet to 
show benefits. However, rather than just concentrating on getting numbers down, the 
ACE programme is aiming to deal with the fundamentals that cause the delays.  
 

Page 4



Partners are now working more closely together to achieve common standards and 
criteria that all can subscribe to. There is also a common aim to bring about a 
change to the present risk averse attitudes that prevail.  
 
The system needs to be simplified and clarified so that the understanding of GPs 
and others working in the field can be improved.  
 
The intention is to concentrate on people and the quality of service rather than just 
numbers. What services should be provided within the funding available and where 
those services should be to provide the most good are overriding criteria. 
 
Following the presentation members asked a large number of questions. Mr Sinclair 
and Ms Trevillion undertook to produce a written summary of the questions and to 
provide answers to them. The answers have been provided and are shown below: 
 
   
Councillor David Turner 
1. Bed based intermediate care (Watlington specifically). When will we and providers 

know (particularly the Watlington care home) what the intentions of the Council 
and the PCT are in relation to the intermediate care beds?  
As part of the ACE programme we are reviewing the type, volume and position of 
community beds that will be required to support the population of Oxfordshire for 
the future. This will not be a quick job to do and we will let you know how and 
when this work will happen. 
 
We also know that we currently have not got good use of the existing community 
bed services and we are aiming to do a short piece of work to improve this and 
we will be expecting to talk to you and the providers involved very soon.  

 
 
2. Why are the care home sector not represented on the ACE Programme Board?  

The ACE Board membership consists of senior managers from the four statutory 
organisations Oxfordshire County Council, Primary Care Trust/Oxfordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group, Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust, and Oxford University 
Hospital NHS Trust.  These are the four organisations that have statutory responsibility 
for the delivery of services for older people. It is not the intention to extend the 
membership or this partnership to a range of other providers including the care home 
sector because the board consists only of statutory providers. If we included the care 
home sector we would need to include all the other health and social care sectors and the 
voluntary sector. It is the Boards intention that the range of health and social care 
providers alongside patients and the public and the voluntary sector will have the 
opportunity to be engaged and be involved in the work of the programme over the coming 
months and an engagement and communication plan is being developed. 

 
 
Councillor Charles Shouler  
3. Definition of who goes into an Intermediate Care Bed?  

The majority of people who use an intermediate care bed are people who are 
being discharged from acute or community hospitals who will benefit from a 

Page 5



period of support and rehabilitation before returning home (for the majority of 
people) or going into a care home. 
 
They are also used to support people to avoid admission to acute hospital where 
people require additional support and rehabilitation to be more independent at 
home. 
 
 

4. On point 3 of the report what does ‘adjusting present capacity levels in acute and 
post-acute care’ mean? 
As part of the review of the number of beds – acute (the JR and the Horton) and 
post-acute (community hospitals and intermediate care beds) we will be 
reviewing whether we have the right number in the right place delivering the right 
type of service for the older population of Oxfordshire. The general view at the 
moment is that we have more beds – both acute and community – than our 
comparator areas and their level of delays are not as high as Oxfordshire’s. 
 
 

Councillor Jenny Hannaby 
5. Why have these actions not happened before now?  

Our view is that Delayed Transfer of Care (DTOC) is a symptom of system not working 
well and therefore we have changed the approach to addressing it as a whole system 
issue.  In essence this means starting with how the patient/service user experiences 
services and making sure that the services in place enable that person to get back on 
his/her feet and return home as effectively as possible. This will require us to ensure the 
care pathways are appropriate, coherent, accessible and delivered to the right capacity for 
the population.   

 
 
Councillor Rose Stratford 
6. What is hospital at home service? 

Hospital at home provides a service that rapidly responds to patients who need 
extra support and care and they can be treated in their own home, rather than 
being admitted into a hospital. Patients who require extra care will be assessed in 
the community for example by a GP, or by a unit such as the Community based 
Emergency Medical Unit in Abingdon Community Hospital, and if appropriate 
they can then be referred to Hospital at Home. 
  
The Hospital at Home team will also support the early discharge of patients from 
hospital who require sub-acute care (more intensive care) in the home. This care 
is provided on an average for seven days, but can be up to fourteen. The service 
aims to support efforts to tackle DTOC by reducing not only the need for patients 
to be admitted into hospital but also supporting them to return to their homes. The 
Hospital at Home service is currently running across the whole County.   

 

7. What is the role of the end of life care matrons?  
Their role is to proactively identify people who may be within the last year of their life 
who have had three or more unplanned admissions to hospital and to work with people on 

Page 6



crisis planning thus reducing disruptive emergency admissions. In addition, the matrons 
educate, inform and support primary care professionals about End of Life Care and act as 
champions for equitable access from areas of deprivation, minority ethnic communities 
and patients with non-malignant conditions who are at the end of their lives. 

 
8. What do the community beds provide? Do they provide respite?  

The Community beds currently provide: 
-  Community hospital services – a range of sub-acute medical support for people who 

no longer need acute hospital services but still require some medical support and 
support to improve independence before either going home (for the majority) or move 
onto a care home. 

- Intermediate Care Services – in nursing homes with additional rehabilitation support 
for a period up to 6 weeks to support people to increase and improve their 
independence at home. This is mostly as people are discharged from hospital before 
going home but can be an admission from home. 

They are not normally used for respite as there are other specific respite care 
services available. 

 
 
Dr Harry Dickinson 
9. What alternatives are there for housing for older people?  

There are a range of alternative housing options that are being looked at for older 
people but the main area of development is Extra Care Housing (ECH) and the 
County Council is working with the district and city council to increase the number 
of extra care facilities that will support people who can no longer manage in their 
own home but who do not need to go into a care home. 
 
Most of these are new build facilities where people have the option to buy or rent 
a single or double self-contained flat with communal areas, often with optional 
meal facility, on site minimal care support and the option of increasing this care 
support as people’s needs change. 
 
There are 277 ECH flats currently in operation in Oxfordshire and this will rise to 
407 by April next year. Eight further, new schemes have recently been awarded 
HCA (the Homes and Communities Agency, the national housing and 
regeneration agency for England) capital grant and we are confident this will 
increase ECH capacity to a total of 880 flats by 2015. In addition there are good 
prospects for further schemes which do not have HCA grant but can be 
supported by OCC grant which could add a further 275 units by 2015. This would 
give a grand total of over 1,000 ECH flats being developed between 2007 and 
2015 although planning permissions, etc. still need agreement.  
 
The provision of equipment and adaptations in peoples own homes is also critical 
here and both the PCT and the Council see this as a priority area of work and 
investment. 
 
 

Cllr Keith Strangwood 
10. What about the standard of and quality of care workers? 

Page 7



This is a critical area and as more people choose their own care workers via the 
use of a personal budget this becomes even more important. The ACE Board will 
be looking at this as part of its work and the new Joint Commissioning function in 
the County Council will be looking at this area as part of its new responsibilities. 
 
There is some evidence that shows where people are able to choose or be 
supported to choose the people who come into their home to provide their care 
support that this is a more positive relationship for both the carer and the cared 
for. 
 
 

Jonathan McWilliam 
11. Would be good to have an analysis of why the DTOC figure is so high and has not 

been resolved yet? Why are there all these 29 services? What are we doing about 
long term solutions?  
The way that the NHS has traditionally approached the ‘hot spot’ areas such as 
long waits for care, high emergency admission rates etc has been to bring in 
solutions to address those specific problems. Where problems have not been 
solved, other initiatives have been introduced sometimes not taking in to account 
the whole picture and creating a layered effect on service provision. This has 
resulted in a number of service overlaps which from the point of view of GPs and 
patients/service users seem confusing and not easy to access.  

 

More often than not when planning care for people, because of the complex web of 
services available, it has led clinicians to default to the quickest and easiest solution, that 
is, to admit people in to hospital rather than find services to support them at home. Once 
those people have been treated in hospital the default option has been to discharge people 
to community hospitals. This has created a bottle neck of people who then become 
delayed in acute hospitals and then again in the community hospitals. From the 
community hospitals, people are all too easily admitted from there in to care homes.  

 

The unintended outcome has been the provision of a bed based service with a number of 
delays at various points in the pathway leading to an aggregated high number of delays. 

 
 
Councillor Susanna Pressel 
12. Why could the DTOC figure get worse before they improve?  

We are committed to making a sustainable change to a care pathway that provides the 
right care at the right place at the right time for people. This will take time as the care 
pathways need to be changed and delivered differently with the appropriate workforce. 
Sustainable well planned change takes time to implement. In the interim we expect the 
figures to get worse firstly due to ‘winter pressures’ and secondly with the transition to a 
much more integrated service, the numbers are unlikely to drop dramatically in the short 
term. We are, however, of the view that the number of delays will reduce slowly, in a 
sustainable way. 

 
13. Why is it taking so long to resolve this?  

Page 8



The three main providers of services Oxford University Hospitals Trust (OUH), Oxford 
Health NHS Foundation Trust (Oxford Health) and Social and Community Services 
(SCS) currently work together but not in an integrated way. These three providers of care 
have now given their commitment to a single approach to addressing the problem. They 
have submitted an 8 point plan which predominantly focuses on delivering the right 
services in the right place that are integrated at the point of delivery to the patient/service 
user. This will result in fewer people going in to hospital and when people are admitted 
there will be a reduced number of people delayed.    

 
 
 
Councillor Lawrie Stratford 
14. Need to make sure that accommodation is suitable for people? 

Yes agreed and the new Joint Commissioning service in the Council will be 
aiming to prioritise accommodation and housing options for people with care 
needs within its work. 

 
15. Who determines the number of community beds that are needed?  

As part of the review of this area it will be the commissioners from the PCT and 
the Council who will be undertaking the work and making the recommendations 
for any changes to the relevant NHS and Council governance bodies. And 
depending on the scale of these changes will mean different governing bodies 
will need to be involved. 

 
 
Councillor Val Smith 
16. How can two people get very different support – one coming out of the JR and the 

other from the city community hospital?  
We know this different level of support is happening far too often across the county. The 
ACE Programme is aiming to achieve a consistency of approach and ways of working 
across the county.  
 

17. And why is that when people want to go home this does not happen?  
For the majority of people supporting a move home from hospital is the main aim. 
For some people where the risk of moving home is too great then the 
professionals involved will work with a patient and their family to find a suitable 
alternative –either care home or extra care housing. 
 
What we do know is that there are far too many people working in health and 
social care who are too risk averse about supporting people to go home and are 
waiting for everything to be perfect for a patient to return home – but what that 
means is that people are delayed and we all know that any period longer than 
necessary being in an acute hospital is not beneficial particularly for older people 
and that getting people home to their home environment once the medical 
intervention is completed is the best thing for them. 
 

Councillor Dr Peter Skoler  
18. Are we comparing like with like with the counting of DTOC between different 

areas? Are we all measuring the same thing?  

Page 9



We have set plans in place to bench mark ourselves against Buckinghamshire services 
and establish whether or not we are counting delays in the same way. This will go some 
way in answering that question. 

 
19. Can you comment about the position of Continuing Health Care?  

This has been addressed in full at the Adult Services Scrutiny Panel on 6th December, 
2011. 

 
 

68/11 OXFORD UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS NHS TRUST - STRATEGY UPDATE  
(Agenda No. 7) 
 
At the start of the item the Chairman read out the following statement from Councillor 
Ann Bonner, member for Banbury Grimsbury & Castle; 
 
“I have been asked by a number of my constituents to contact you to express 
concern about developments at the Horton General Hospital. In particular they are 
worried about the proposed changes to gynaecology services and the effect that 
they could have on single sex accommodation; bed closures and the possibility of 
the loss of training recognition. 
 
People in Banbury believe that the conversion of G Ward to day cases and the 
consequent move of patients into E Ward could, as it would be a mixed sex ward, 
compromise women's privacy and dignity. Furthermore the closure of a number of 
beds might be seen to increase the threat of the withdrawal of training recognition. 
Furthermore the views of the staff on the ward are concerned about the whole idea 
of splitting up the service by locating the inpatient beds in a different area. Local 
people would like to receive a confirmation that the 6 beds concerned will be 
protected in that they cannot be used for other purposes without the consent of the 
Gynaecology Department. 
 
In view of these concerns I would ask you to seek a public statement from the Chief 
Executive of the Hospital Trust that everything will be done to protect the privacy of 
women patients. Furthermore a statement should be made that changes to service 
configuration and bed closures will not lead to any reductions in services provided at 
the Horton and that they intend to fully honour the IRP requirement to do more to 
develop “clinically integrated practice” across the whole Trust.” 
 
Following this Councillor George Parish Chair of the “Keep the Horton General” 
group introduced a number of members of the group. Charlotte Bird, Vice-Chair of 
the group, then read out a statement and asked a number of questions. The 
statement and questions were as follows: 
 
Statement for HOSC 
 
Can I ask that any questions that are asked, and any answers given, are 
minuted please? 
 

1. Gynaecology. Whilst we acknowledge that the enhanced range of day and 
outpatient procedures will be of benefit, we remain concerned about the effect 

Page 10



of splitting up services by locating inpatient beds in a different area. This is 
based on the views of the staff on the ward (formally expressed in their 
published response) who are best placed to judge the practicalities of the 
safety or quality of the service.  
The Horton Obstetric Group on 19th October was informed that, contrary to 
previous statements, the 6 beds to be allocated to Gynaecology will be ring-
fenced, i.e. cannot be used for other purposes without the consent of the 
Gynaecology department. In view of earlier conflicting statements, this 
position needs to be confirmed. 
We have raised the question of whether the changes would have any adverse 
effect on future recognition for training purposes – of vital importance in 
relation to the linked service of Obstetrics. Whilst the enhanced range of 
procedures is likely to be viewed positively, the lack of a dedicated ward for 
inpatients could have the opposite effect. 
We are aware that responsibility for such recognition is passing from Royal 
Colleges to Deaneries and is likely to change again in the future. However, 
we would urge that before irrevocable changes are made an opinion on 
this matter be sought from whichever body is currently responsible. 

  
2. Consultation. Although at its last meeting HOSC did not feel that the 

Gynaecology changes required the full consultation process, the manner in 
which they have been introduced was criticised. 
This was debated at the CPN meeting on 27th September when an alternative 
was proposed and agreed. The essential features were that in future, if the 
ORH managers identified an area of actual or potential problem, they should 
seek opinions first from interested parties, the staff, general practitioners and 
public through structures which have been established, before producing a 
plan. We would ask the assistance of HOSC in ensuring that this change 
of practice is maintained in the future as it would favour more 
cooperative working and help avoid negative reactions. 

 
3. Cumulative changes. We are concerned at the possibility of a series of 

measures, none of which is individually considered sufficient to trigger full 
consultation but which taken together represent a major change. We are now 
aware of major changes with orthopaedics. Cllr Keith Strangwood can enlarge 
upon this now or later during the course of the meeting. However it is an issue 
that we believe will require a full consultation. 
In addition to the Gynaecology changes mentioned earlier, we are aware of 
proposals to reduce radiology cover at weekends. Since we know that the 
number of births is increasing, the need for scans is also increasing – 
obviously! 
We wish to know how the HOSC plans to deal with such a situation of 
incremental change. 
 

4. Overall bed numbers at the Horton. Reductions have already been made of 
10 medical and 7 surgical beds. To this must be added the closure of the 
Gynaecology ward to inpatients and their relocation elsewhere which reduces 
the total available by a further 12. We have been made aware of other 
changes which adversely affect the bed total. 

Page 11



The justification for this is usually that medical practice is changing so that 
less beds are required and more recently in the case of the Horton, that these 
beds to be closed represent those which are occupied by “delayed 
discharges” and that there are plans in hand to deal with the latter problem. 
This ignores the lessons of history, that the problems of delayed discharges 
has been with us for decades and has defied many attempts at its solution. 
New attempts and new initiatives are to be welcomed but to expect them to 
produce rapid results is overoptimistic, particularly at a time when local 
authority spending on community support services is coming under severe 
pressure. Moreover the additional funds allocated to the PCT for this purpose 
are strictly time limited. 
To make the reductions in advance of any evidence that the problem is 
lessening is to invite severe difficulties as we approach the Winter period. At 
our request, the OH has agreed to carry out regular monitoring and make 
reports on admissions which have to be refused. Patients who have to be 
diverted elsewhere, booked admissions cancelled etc. 
Bed shortages could involve the Horton incurring penalties for breaching the 
target for time spent in A&E and this also needs to be taken into account and 
monitored regularly. 
HOSC is requested to help ensure that such monitoring is carried out 
and the results made public. 

 
These questions were followed by a further series of questions from  Rob and Jenny 
Jones, members of the KTHG group, as follows:  
 

• How many more beds are to be closed throughout the Horton General? 
• Where is money being spent in OUHT and how will savings be made? I hope 

that we will be given relevant details of where money is actually being spent 
within OUHT and what and how savings are to be made at each site and in 
which areas, Social care, General Acute Care and Specialist Services. 

• In the list of the Trust’s Strategic Objectives, the second objective is :- 
To provide high quality, specialist services to the population of Oxfordshire 
and beyond. 
The Trust’s first strategic objective is :- 
To provide high quality, general acute healthcare services to the population of 
Oxford. 
In view of this, does the Trust provide care to all of Oxfordshire or just Oxford? 

• Residents in the south of the county also have hospitals on the county 
boundary at Swindon and Reading, in addition to Oxford, at which they can 
choose to receive treatment.  So the services at the Horton are extremely 
important to provide choice for residents in the north of the county and 
beyond.  Perhaps the residents in the north of the county are seen as a 
captive market and do not count.  How are acute services for the residents in 
the north of the county to be provided and developed?   

• The phrase ‘Reshape “local” services.’ used later on the page sounds 
ominous, particularly in light of the proposals of 2006.  How will the idea of 
‘seeking to maximise the use of the better accommodation across the Trust.’ 
affect the Horton and will it continue to provide “Patient choice” or is this an 
empty cliché? 

Page 12



• The [Trust’s] strategy appears to be pulling in opposing directions.  On one 
hand it talks of treatment closer to home while on the other of services being 
concentrated in fewer and fewer locations.  Does this agree with the concept 
of Patients’ Choice and when there is so little capacity system what choice 
does the person taking the last place have, and the one after that?  

• Milton Keynes has its own acute hospital and presumably it also has its own 
strategy to deal with the any population growth.  Why is it a factor in OUHT’s 
strategy?  Or is this the next target for take over and closure?  

• The capacity of the Horton Gynaecology Day Case Unit will be around 3000 
cases per year.  What is the minimum capacity level at which the operation of 
the unit will be considered viable? 

• What is the Plan B if this level is not reached? 
• As we go into the winter months with increasing demand for emergency 

admissions we are told that beds are ‘flexed’ to address the problems.  Is it 
not the case that no additional beds can be brought into play at the Horton, so 
‘flexing’ just means cancelling elective procedures? 

• In point 10 of the strategy the aim is to close beds once the issue of delayed 
transfers of care (DTOC)has been resolved.  Beds have already been closed 
at the Horton on the expectation that DTOCs will be reduced.  How many 
more are intended to go? 

• In view of the mooted major changes in orthopaedics at the Horton, how do 
the finances work in currently loaning staff to the ISTC?  Does it generate a 
healthy profit?  What are the implications of the loss of this profit? 
 

Following the statement and questions the Chairman made four points: 
 
i. That the HOSC accepted in good faith that gynaecology services at the 

Horton would improve following implementation of the Trust’s proposals and 
that more patients would be treated there. However the Trust would be held to 
account if these expectations were not to be realised. 

ii. That the HOSC expected that consultation would improve through the 
development of a protocol between the Trust and the Community Partnership 
Network (CPN). It was expected that service changes would happen only 
once proper informal consultation had been undertaken with all interested and 
relevant parties.  

iii. The role of the HOSC is to ensure that services are maintained and/or 
improved. It is not the role of the Committee to seek to protect bed numbers. 
The HOSC recognises that procedures and methods of treatment are 
changing with, for example, developments in keyhole surgery. That could well 
lead to reductions in bed numbers with fewer people having to stay in 
hospitals and the HOSC understands that.  

iv. Management must be allowed to manage and it is not part of the HOSC’s job 
to “micro-manage” the local NHS. However the Committee expects 
meaningful consultation to be undertaken by the Trust over proposed changes 
and for commissioners and providers to explain to the public why change 
takes place.  

 
Sir Jonathan Michael then commented in response to Councillor Bonner’s statement 
that the Trust is fully committed to protecting the privacy of all patients at all times. 
He also reiterated that the proposed changes to services at the Horton would not 

Page 13



lead to any reductions in services and that the Trust intends to honour the IRP 
requirement to do more to develop “clinically integrated practice” across the whole 
Trust. 
 
Sir Jonathan also accepted the importance of developing good communications with 
people in and around Banbury and agreed to answer the questions raised by the 
Keep the Horton General group through the CPN. 
 
Sir Jonathan then presented the paper on the Trust’s updated strategy. He explained 
that the main factors driving change are: 
 

• Quality standards, e.g. single-sex accommodation, that must be met 
• The financial position requires savings of 5-6% this year and in the future 
• Public expectations and choice. 
• Epidemiology and demography 
• Commissioner strategies 
• Workforce issues 
• National and local service reconfiguration 
• Any Qualified Provider (AQP) and a more competitive environment 
• Shorter stays in hospital due to changes in procedures 

 
He stated that the most useful question to ask is not how many beds are there but 
are services getting better. 
 
Ian Davies, Chairman of the Community Partnership Network, then spoke to the 
Committee. Mr Davies explained that the role of the CPN is to look across the wider 
issues of health in Banbury and the surrounding area – not just the Horton. The CPN 
will act as the consultative body for changes in health services including those 
relating to the Horton. Change will be looked at in the broader context of health 
services in the north of the County. The CPN will monitor what happens at the 
Horton and will liaise with the HOSC as necessary. 
 
The nature and timing of consultation must, Mr Davies said, be got right in the future. 
The CPN will wish to be closely involved in developing a consultation protocol and 
discussions are already going on with the Trust over the best way to do this. 
 
Councillor Keith Strangwood then asked the following questions. He also asked that 
the questions and answers should be recorded in the minutes. 
  
Q. Are bed numbers relevant to staff availability? A. Yes, insofar as staff numbers 
relate to the nature of the unit and the safe and proper care of patients. Staff 
numbers are monitored regularly. 
Q. Does the flexi bed system work? A. Beds have to be used flexibly e.g. more 
would be used in the summer for elective procedures than in winter when they would 
be needed for e.g. flu. 
Q. Are staff being reduced via retirement etc, i.e. natural wastage and not being 
replaced? A. It is inevitable that staff numbers have to be looked at in meeting 
financial targets. However the safety of patients is always paramount. 
Q. I have recently received reports that there are in the pipeline changes at Banbury 
Horton re Pathology? Can you confirm or deny this? A. Changes are being 

Page 14



considered to provide some services more cheaply. However the service will be 
retained at the Horton. 
Q. Can you confirm or deny that 2 weeks ago the ORH PCT awarded a contract to 
Ramsey Healthcare, to the disappointment of the Nuffield, who were unsuccessful in 
their bid? A. The commissioners decided to award the contract to Ramsey in 
preference to the OU Trust which now includes the NOC.  
Q. Can you also confirm or deny that ORH chief executive and team, have now 
decided to terminate the secondment of all staff to the TC at Banbury Horton? A. 
Following the awarding of the contract to Ramsey Healthcare secondments have 
been terminated in order to strengthen service provision in Oxford. 
Q. If this is so? Then has this not been a stand alone decision by ORH/OUH with no 
proper consultation? A. The orthopaedic service provided to patients  will not be 
affected; it is a staffing issue and so there is no need for consultation. 
Q. Can you also confirm or deny? The alleged withdraw of secondment will take 
place from Jan 1ST 2012? A. Yes 
Q. If these alleged changes are planned? will any orthopaedics be carried out at 
Banbury Horton? A. There will be no change to the pattern or level of service. 
Q. If this is true? It would not be possible to maintain Trauma without Orthopaedics, 
no Trauma means no full cover A and E? Hence, minor injuries unit only? A. See 
previous answer 
 
There then followed a series of questions from members. In response to a question 
about mixed sex wards Sir Jonathan Michael stated that the Trust continues to work 
hard to eliminate mixed sex accommodation and is being successful in their aims. 
A question was then asked about whether there were sufficient female obstetricians 
at the Horton General to be able to deal with the numbers of Muslim women giving 
birth there. Andrew Stevens replied that all women who wish to have a female doctor 
attend to them would be able to do so. 
Sir Jonathan the responded to a question about nutrition and dignity of older patients 
by accepting that there had been some criticism in a recent CQC report on nutrition 
at the hospital. The CQC had found that the John Radcliffe Hospital was meeting the 
standard relating to treating people with respect but that some improvements were 
needed around the provision of food and drink. A strategy for improvement is now in 
place and a system of regular ward visits is occurring to ensure that patients are able 
to get access to their food and drink. 
The following points were then made in response to a question about the reablement 
programme. Discussions are ongoing with Oxford Health and the Nuffield 
Orthopaedic Centre in order to develop further the reablement programme. The OUH 
Trust is also involved in the ACE programme and the trust will provide more support 
at home for patients as part of an enhanced discharge programme. 
On the subject of the national consultation on paediatric cardiac surgery, Sir 
Jonathan expressed some disappointment that the result of the consultation has 
been delayed by the recent court decision in the case brought by the Royal 
Brompton Hospital. The link with Southampton is working well and they are now 
developing a joint paediatric neurosurgery service with the centre in Oxford. 
A comment was then made welcoming the suggested enhanced monitoring role for 
the Community Partnership Network in the north of the County. It was hoped that this 
would lead to more light being thrown onto positive developments rather than 
concentrating on negative aspects. Sir Jonathan agreed with this and stated that the 
Trust is committed to open communications and transparency. 

Page 15



Two questions were asked about the possible outcome of the strategic review. One 
asked whether there would be any changes in the provision of drugs. Andrew 
Stevens sated that, while the Trust always looked for the most economical means of 
providing drugs such as by using generic rather than branded medicines, patients 
would always continue to receive the drugs that they needed. 
The second questioner commented that they were fortunate to live in Oxfordshire 
with the high quality of care available and asked whether patients would notice any 
difference following the formation of the new trust. Sir Jonathan replied that the 
strategic review was looking at services not costs although they always had to 
consider carefully how money was being spent. Patients should notice no difference 
immediately but it was hoped that care should improve as a wider range of skills 
became available throughout the new trust. Furthermore, with more staff available, 
the out of hours care should improve. 
Finally assurance was sought that there was sufficiently close working between the 
OUH and the mental health trust and that patients with physical symptoms and who 
are also mentally ill are having their multiple needs recognised and treated 
accordingly. Sir Jonathan stated that there is close co-operation and that a new 
appointment has been made within the University of a Professor of Psychological 
Care with a particular emphasis on engagement. 
 
The item ended with the Chairman thanking everybody who had contributed to the 
discussions. 
 

69/11 CHIPPING NORTON HOSPITAL STAFFING  
(Agenda No. 8) 
 
The Chairman reminded the Committee that the issue they were now dealing with 
related to whether or not a review of the service provided at the new Chipping Norton 
Hospital should take place two or three years after the opening of the hospital; i.e. in 
June 2013 or 2014. The original agreement had been that the review would be after 
three years and that any staff employed during that time would be given the option of 
being employed under NHS terms and conditions of service rather than those of the 
Orders of St John (OSJ) who manage the hospital. The PCT had sought to remove 
that condition altogether but, following objections from the HOSC, were now offering 
a review after two years with all new recruits, if they wished, being on NHS 
conditions during that period. 
 
Alan Webb, representing the commissioners of the service, opened the discussion 
by stressing that the quality of care had to be the paramount consideration; that 
there was no intention to downgrade services at Chipping Norton and that managers 
from the OSJ were talking to local GPs about the type of service that they, the GPs, 
would wish to see provided. Since the hospital opened there had been no complaints 
recorded and a number of compliments. 
 
The commissioners were committed to the review of care quality and the service 
specification. They would wish to work with HOSC members on the terms of 
reference and specification for the review. The review findings would be applied to all 
community hospitals in Oxfordshire. 
 

Page 16



Olga Senior, from NHS South of England (the clustered SHA), stated that they share 
the view of the PCT. They had undertaken their own survey since the hospital 
opened and had also found no complaints about the present service. They consider 
that the contract and specification that the OSJ was working to was “robust” and 
would help to ensure a high quality of service provision. It was clear that in future 
GPs, via the Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (OCCG), should have a 
pivotal role in deciding on what level of service should be commissioned. Quality 
must come first. 
 
During the subsequent discussion the following points were made: 
 
The commissioners would always ensure that staff at the hospital, regardless of who 
employs them, would be properly trained, qualified and supervised. There should be 
no difference between the safety and quality of the service provided at Chipping 
Norton than that provided in any other Oxfordshire hospital. 
The service specification is part of the contract with OSJ and that enables the 
commissioner to have quite a measure of control. 
Staff are managed by a clinical manager.  
 
At the end of the discussion the Committee AGREED to the two year period for the 
review; i.e. the review would take place in June 2013. It was further AGREED that 
Councillors Hilary Hibbert-Biles and Lawrie Stratford should represent the HOSC in 
working with the commissioners on the review. 
 
 

70/11 OXFORDSHIRE LINK GROUP – INFORMATION SHARE  
(Agenda No. 9) 
 
The regular LINk report was presented by Adrian Chant. There were no questions. 
 
Alison Partridge then updated the Committee on the latest position vis a vis 
HealthWatch. She explained that the County Council had a responsibility to establish 
HealthWatch by October 2012. It would have a wider remit than the LINk and the 
HealthWatch role would, by 2013, include advocacy and complaints. A widespread 
consultation process is going on to agree a commissioning model.  
 
Ina answer to questions about the scrutiny and governance of HealthWatch Alison 
Partridge told the Committee that the contract would be with the County Council 
which would therefore monitor the quality of service and activities undertaken by 
Oxfordshire HealthWatch. HealthWatch England would also have some role but the 
finer points of the governance arrangements have yet to be worked out. 
 

71/11 CHAIRMAN’S REPORT  
(Agenda No. 10) 
 
The Chairman reported on the following meetings in which he had taken part: 
 

• Toolkit meeting on gynaecological services at the Horton General Hospital 
• A meeting with the PCT to discuss the provision of a new Townlands Hospital 

in Henley 

Page 17



• Oxford Health – informal “catching up” meeting with the Chief Executive and 
others 

• A meeting with Nicola Blackwood MP for Oxford West and Abingdon and 
Simon Burns MP Minister of State for Health Services to talk about health 
services in the area 

 
72/11 CLOSE OF MEETING  

(Agenda No. 11) 
 
The meeting closed at 13.25. 
 
 
 in the Chair 
  
Date of signing   
 

Page 18



�
�
�
�
�

�
����������	�


��
������
���

	�����	���������

�

�����
���
����

��

� �
�
�
�������	
��	���
����

��
�������	�����	��������

���
��
���������������������

�
�

Agenda Item 5

Page 19



�
���������	�
��

���� �� �
�����
������

����������	�
��
������
���	�����	���������
�����
����������


��������	�������������

�����������������������
��

���

���������������
���

�
�����	������	����

�� �

����
�!��

"�����
�
�������
������������������	��	�����������
��
��������#����

#�
���
������
����	���
����#�		����$��

�� �

����
�!�

�����
��

��
����#�������
���
����
�
����
��
����
���

�
�����	������	��������	�
��

��%�

�&����������
�

������������'���
��
��������
����

�����$�!�

�����������������
����������������	�����	�������������������������������� �����
�����������!�� �"�����������#�����������$��������%������
������������&�

�� '����������������

������������	�����	��������(�
�� )�������������������������������������������������������������*�����

	���������
��������(�
�� )����	�����������������������������������������������*�����
�������%�

+

��������������������(�

"��������

�
������
�
����#������
���
����
�
����
��
�������	�
��

�����������#�����������
�����
����
������$�(�������������
������#�$
��
���������������
����	��$���
�
����
�������
��������������		����	�������

�

$�������
����
������
$
��$�����������	�����$�!�

�����	��������
	���
��
���)�*������+�
���$������	�������

��������������
�
��	�����������
,��������	�����$�

	������������		������$�������#������	�����
�������
���
����!�-���
��
�	�
����
��
�����$�
�����	�����$��������$����������
���
������
������	
��	�$
��
�����!�
"��������
�%��

���������������	�������������
����

��
��	
��	���
�	���
����$�	
��	�
����$�!������������������	
��	��
�����	�������
����������
�������
����
$��$��
��

��
	�
$����+��
�����#������
���

������������������������

���
���
�����������
�
���

�!�

��

�$�
����		����������$�����	������	������.�
���$��
��.��
�	
��	�$
��
����������
���
��
������������
/
�
�����������+!�

-����������������
����
������$�%��������������������������#����
�������������
��	���
��
#�
����

�	�������������������$��
�	��$
����		���

����������
�������!�

������
����������$�%���������$�	�����

�
������
���'�����
�������#�
��
	���

�	���%�

����#��

$
������������
����	��
	�������
�����	��#��
��
�
����

���������
�����	����!�

����������	�
��

��������
���

��
������������'�!�

"������������������������
��

��������������	����
��
����
��������

�������)
����!��"���
�

�����
������������������ �	����	���
����	������������#����	�������-�		����$��
�
�����
�������������
�

�����!�"��������
��

����	���
���	�������%��
���������
����������#����
��$��$(����
�������������
��������%��
���
�$����
������
�����	���!��

"��
����
����/
����������

�����

����	�%�������!�

�
!�0
�������1�-�		����
��
���

�
�����	������	����

�� �

����
��
�
�����
�����!�

���������������������������������������� ����
������������	�
�������������
�����
����	��������������������������

Page 20



�
���������	�
��

���� 2� �
�����
������

,��������
�
,������� -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- .�

,�������/�+�����������������,��

����---------------------------------------------------------------- 0�

,�������1�+�2���#��������,��
���	������*�����------------------------------------------------------- 3�

,�������.�+�4����
����
��&��*���������,������

�����*��� ---------------------------------- 15�

,�������0�+������������������	�������� ----------------------------------------------------------------- 1.�

,�������6�+��
����
&�)���7��8����
�����(----------------------------------------------------------- 19�

,�������:�+�;��������<�

�����������---------------------------------------------------------------------- .1�

�

Page 21



�
���������	�
��

���� 3� �
�����
������

,�������/�+�����������������,��

����-�

'������������
�����
���
����
�
���
���

�
�����	������	��������	�
��

����������$�	�$���������
���		��$����
�����
���
�������������$

#��$������
������

�

��
��
��
	��
���
�	��
���� �

����
�!�"��������	�����$������	
�$�	���������$

�����	����
�����
�����$�������	��
��������)
����%�������
������	����
��������������		��$��
��
�����$���$���
�������
�
���������������
��
	��
���
�	��������������
������$��$�� �������
�����������
���
�
�����	�����

�����!�

)����������������������������� ������������������������������
������������,��

����(�

�� ���������
�
��
	��
���
�	������ �

����
���
���������
�$

#����� ������!��
�� ����$

#���������������
�
����
�	���$���4�5�����

�$�	�����	����#��������

6�$	�������
�$�%��
����������������������
���������
��������
���������
�������
	������������
������������	����
�������������
��������
�	
�������������	���������
����������� !����	���������������	���"���

����������������������������
������

"�#�
���	���$	
�����������������	����
����������������������������
���%��

�� ���������������
��
	��
���
�	����������
��	���
���	�
��
���������
����
����%�
#�������������������
���
�����������

���������	�����
���������
���
��
�$
!�

�� �����
���
����
��$��

�
	��
���
�	�����
��������
'��	��#�����$�%�
����$����
�����
	�������
������
����
��	���!����������
����

��
������	�����
�������
���	���
�!�
����������
#�������$�
����!�

�� �	��
���
�	��
�$��	�������������� ��������	� ��	��
��$��
����
���������	��
�

��������
����������	��������
�����������������������������������������
������	
����
��
����

����	
�$�����
����	�!�����#�$���
���
��
����
���������

�7��
����
�����������������!�

�� ������
�����$������
�
����
�	���
����$�$��������
��$��

��	��
	���
����������

�	�����������������

���
	�����
�����
���	�!�1����
����������
�	���
��
�	��
	��������	���!�-���
��������������
���������
�����%�
�	�����������
�
	�����
�!�+���

���
�����	����
�
���
���
�����������
���#

'�#�������'���
�
	�����
��$��
����	�������������������!�

�� ���������		��$����
���������������#�
	��
��
�
��
�����!������
����������#��
�
��������������
������
�
����	�����
������������
������������
���
������������
���	��
����	��
	���������
��������	�
��
��

�!�

�� ���
���
��#������
����
������
���

�	���

�
	��
���
�	������		���
���
��������+�
�����
���	���
���������!�������	��'�
��������
������
��#�

�������
���
�
�������$���
�!���

�� ��������
���
�������

������	��
	���
��	���
��	����$����
�
�	��
���������
�
�������$��������

��
���
�!�

�� ���
�������$

#��$������
�
����
�	��#��������������������)
�����#�
�
�7��
��
��������
���#����
$��$��
��������!�

Page 22



�
���������	�
��

���� �� �
�����
������

<�������-�
�����
		
#��$����
�����		�����#�
	����

�!��8�$�
������
#�����������
�
����
�	���$���
4�5�
����$����
���������
�!��
������������
����� ��
�������
����������
�����#������
� �

����
�%�#����-���������$�����$
����������
�������������)������
���	
#�����
���!��
���������
����������������
��
�		�
����
��$

#������/������
�����������
��	����
�$�!�
�

;������/�+�
��=����������
������+�>��
���$���	�����������������������+����������������������
���%���	����155?���������������?6������������*���

�
�

;������1�+�������������	����
�����������%������%�����������	����
�������������������
��%����
��������������-�

�������
�����,������������
������*�����@�����,�������>���������������������	�

���
�����$�155.+50

�

���

�%���

�%���

�%���

�%���

2%���

2%���

3%���

3%���

�%���

�		�9�
��� �&3 �&�� �:&33 3�&:3 :�&;3 ;�&43 4�5

6 �������
��<=>

�
�

��������������
������
���
���
���	���
����������������� �
���
����
��
��?
��	�
����

�������$���!��8

�� ���	�%��������
�$���$��
������
�
������
��$�����
���
���
�������@������4:������������
�$���$��
������
�
�����
���$�����
�����'�$�����43!�
)
���
���#��������
�
���$���
��
�:�%�����
�
���$���
��
�4�����2!���������

��
	�'�	���
�
�7��
������#���
�����'�$������3��������

��	�'�	���
�
�7��
������
���
���

Page 23



�
���������	�
��

���� :� �
�����
������

�	�������!������
�
��
��
�A�����3��������

��	�'�	���
����������
�����'�$��������
�������

��	�'�	���
����������
���
��!�������������
������

�

��
��
��
	��
���
�	��
��������
��	���
��$

#�%������
����
��
�����	��������
���	���
���
��������#�#����
��
�
��$�����$��#�		����
����!�����
�	���
	���
������
�#

'��
$����
����
��%���
����	�
	��
#����������+!�

'��A����������������,��

����A����

���
��������	�����	��������(�
�

�����������	���� !� "#�
�

!$�������$�������������������������������	������%�����������$���������������	��$���
������#����%��������$�������$����������������������������������	������$���������
������������������	������	���%����		���%���#�
�

����
�������

���������������
���$��	��
�
��		���������!������������
�����	������
�

�������$���
�!��������
�(�
�

�!� �
�������$���������#��
���
����	�������������	���������%���������$����
��
���������'�������������������������!�

�!� 1��������$������������
����������
�������������$����!$!���

�$����
	��
�������
���

$
����������� ��
�������������

�����!�

2!� �����$������$	������
����
������
�

����������$
�	����

���� �

����
�.�����	���
����

��
���������	����������$���������)
���������

��
	���	�$����<� �
���������
�	��
�
���
��������
�������� �	�������
$���>!�

3!� 8�����$��
	���
���#������
�������	��������
���	���
�������
�$�������#�
����
���$	����
����!�

�!� -

'��$���������$	
���#�����������	�������		����$��!�
:!� )
�����$�����

���.�	
#.�
����
�������

���
������
����

�$���
�������&���&

��
������
�����
�
�����	�����
�!�
;!� 9�	�����$�.���
����.���
�������

������
��
���
�����
���������������������

��/

����#����.������	���.���
�������

���
���#����
�
�
��
�����
�������
�
������
���$�������������	������
��������	������	������#����$
������
�!�

4!� 9�	�����$���
������#������
��.�	
��
��
��
��.�#��	����	���
��$��
��
�%���$��
7��	������
�����!�

A!� )
������
���$���
����������$���$��������������
���������
��
���
���%�����
��������������������	���
��
��� �	�����
���	��!�

��!�?

'��$�����		�$���	�����#��
���
�B686BB�?+��
��������

��
�����
��
������
.������.��
���
���
�����
������$���
���#������
�����������
�!������������
��
�
�
���
��������������
���
�
�����������	�����
��%���������	������		�������
��

���

�	�!�����������	����

�� +�	��
���

�	������������	����
��C6�

��
�,��!�
�� ,��
���

�	���
��
���	�����!�
�� B���

�	���

���
��������������	������
��
���	�����!�
�� B���

�	���

��
����
���	������
���
���
�<����
����	�
�#


�����

� �

����
�>!�
�� B���

�	���������	�����
����

��
���	���
�!�

<�9�	

'��$����
���

�	��������#
&��$����#

�%���������������
���	����	�����
�	���	�
�
���	������
������
���������
���

�	��#��
��7��	��������
����#�����$>!�

��!�-

'��$������
���
�����#�����
�������

����
��
����
�!�
��!�)�
��$��

�� �

����
�.����
�
����������

���$��
	�����
�!�

Page 24



�
���������	�
��

���� ;� �
�����
������

�2!�-

'��$�#����
	��
���
�	���
���������
���
�����
�����
�
#��������#��
���
�#��
�������

���
��
��
!��

�3!�8
������$�
����$��7��	�������&
�&	������
�!�
��!�)
�����$����	���������#������
���������������
�#�
������
�
#��
��
�
�����
�

��	��������	���!�
�:!�"���������$���������$������
��
�����
��
���
�

$�������
���������'��D��
��/����

������+��������	���
���	���
�!��"������	�'���
����

�%��
����$%�������
������

��������
����������
����$�������
��%��
���
����	!�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������

��*�����;���������
��������(�
"�������
�(�
�� ������
��������
#�#�		&
��
$�������������$�
���
�������

�����!��
�� � �

����
�����������$

���

$
�������
��
$�����$���������		��$����
	��
�!�
�� ��
���
�����#

'��$������

�$�������
�������
�����������������������	���	��

�
��
�����
�!��-�����������
��

��������
���
��$������������
���
���

�$��������#�
���	�������-�		����$�9
�
��!�

�� �������

������
��$

����
���

�
�
���
�
�������	�
������
��
$�������������
��
�����������#�	�
������
��������
��
�
����������
��������	���	���������������������
��
�
�.��
��'�!������#

'��������
������
���
���
��$������!�

�� �
�������������
����������������
�����$���
������<�!$!�������#��
#�	���
�����$�
�

$
����>���������������
�����
������<�!$!�.�	��/���.>��
��������
���
�

��#�		!�

�� ������
��
����
�	��#�����������������	�
����

���$�������	�������������������$

���
#����

�����
���'��������

#�
�!�������������
��������������!�

�

�
#���
(�
�

�� -��������
���������������

����
����
�	����		��$���#������
����
��
������#���
6�$	���.�����	��������
���	���
������������������!��������.��	�
��B��

�.�
��$�	�$����%��������������	���
���

������	���	������.�
��&������&�
���&
�&��	���
�.���+�
�������#�������
���	���
���������#��������$���&'������������&������$�����
��
���
	����

���
�!������������
#������	�����
�
���
�$$	����
�����$��������
��
��
��
�	�����������
$���

���
�����	����
��
���������
�����	��

��
�
���
��

����
�!��

�� ����������
���
������	�/
����#

'��

�
	��
���
�	����������		������
������
�
�.�$���$�
+��������		�.���
���$�%��������������

�#��'�
������
���	�����$��������������
��
�
��
����
���	����
��
����#

'��

#�
�!�������������
����
��������!�

�� -��������	�
������
���������������$
���������
��
���
��������
���
�	�������

�
� �

����
���

�������
��
��
	��
���
�	���

��		����	�������

�

$�������
��!�-���
���
�����#��������
��
�������
�����
���������
���
�����'��
������
���

$
���!������
������������/

��
�

�����

�������#����	�������-�		����$�9
�
�!���

�� -������������
���
�'������
�$�����	�������������)
��������#����.����
����,���
�	�
�
�����	.���
�������

�������/

��������.+�����	��������+���
&������	���.���
�������

�
������#!�"�������$
�����

���
����������
����
��		��
��
#�����
�����	��
��
�
�
�


����%�������������
���
��#
&��$����#

�!�9�������#������
�	�������������
�
����
�����	����
����
���%�#��������
�	

'���
���		�����
���

�	�
������

��
���
�
���	������
���
���
��		�
��#������
������� �����
*���
���!��-��������
�����
��
����
�$�����	��������#������$��7��	������
���������

����	���!��

Page 25



�
���������	�
��

���� 4� �
�����
������

����������������
/-�����������
����������	����������
�������)�

������2�����
9��1�
��������� �

����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	�������	�������
�������������$

������������		������$�����
���'���

#�
���
������	�#

'������#�		���'��
����������
���		�
��������������!��+��������		���������$

�����
�	�(�

�� 9��	���������	���
���	���
�������	�����	��
������
���$�,

���
��
������������
#

'��$��
$����
�#������+��

����
��
����%�
���
���
������

����
������
�
	����
������

%����	���
��
������������������
�
�!�

�� �$
����	��
�
���
��������
��������

�������
$�����

�����%����2��������3�
#�����������
$����
��������

���
���		�

$���E���
�����������$	����
����
�!�

�� +����	��
�	
��	��
�/���

�����

������
���
��������
��������
�

������
��
$���!����
�

�������$��������������
�	������
���

�������
��

�������	��	��
��

�$���������	�������-�		����$�9
�
�!�

�� 6���
��������	�����
���

�������
��


�����


���
�

�����!�
�� ����#

'��

$
�����
�	�����	���������
������
���$�
���
������	���
������

#�����#�		(�
�� �
�����������������
	��
���
�	����

�$����
�����$�����������E���
��

�

$
����<�!$!���
�����$��

$
��������������9
#�	���
�����$����	���
����'�����������	��/���>!�

�� ���
��������������
�
����
�
��
���
�����	����������

�!�
�� ���
���
�������������
����������������
��������#���
��������������

�


	��
���
�	�!�
�� ���
���
�����������
����
�������		�
���

�	�
�����#�		����	

'������

�����������		����������
����'��!�
�� ����
�������	��$����
���
�����	�������
��������E���#��	��7��	�������'����

��$������������$�
����

���	������
�����
��
����
���
��
������!�
�� ��
��$�����������
���	��
���

��$������
��

	�
��������	���&�
&������	����


���

�	���

�
	��
���
�	���
������7��	���������	�������$�������
��!�
�� ��
#������
��������
��
������������
��
�����	�

����������
���������
��


������������
���
���$��
��������	
�$&��
����
�����������E��!�
�� ����
��$

�����&
�&	������
��������$��7��	������
���

���
�	��#����

��������!�
�

1-�����������
����������	���������	���������,
�����
�,�������������@�����
9��1�
��������� �

����
�.��)	�����	�)
������
���$�,

�����
�	�������		����$�$���
���/
�����	�����$���

�$���������	�������-�		����$�9
�
���

����

���$�������
��
��

	��
���
�	������ �

����
�%�������
�	���	�����$���
�	�
����#�
��������
����
������
��	�&
���

�	�%�,��
���

�	�������
���	������
��
���	�����
���

�	���

�� �

����
�.��
�
��	���
�!�
�

.-� ����	����������
��
���'�*�
*������
9��0����������������	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	������
��������������	���
"��
	�������9
�
�������		����$�$���#����
	��
���
�	����

�������)
�����������������
�
����
���
�����
������
����#����
���	�����
������	�����$��

����!�
�

0-� ������������������

����
9��+�������
������� �

����
�.��0
�������	������
���#�����+�
������)
��������
��
�	����
�����E���������	�������-�		����$�9
�
�.���

��$��������

���
��
��
	��
�
��
�	��������
�	��� ������
������	���
���
�����E�����
��
�����	���������
������������
�������
��
��������
�����
��!�

Page 26



�
���������	�
��

���� A� �
�����
������

,�������1�+�2���#��������,��
���	������*������

'������������
�
���
��������	�
��

�����������������������

��
�����
����$��������

���
���		�


$�������
���
��.9
��'��$�����)��	��
�����
�����
�.!��
-�����
�#��������������F�-��������������������)
��������
���
����
�	�����	�����		�
�����
�
��#�
���#��
���
���	�����������$�������


�
�	�������������
���������
�
#���

��$���
���
���
�$���
���
�!��
���
���
��

����������
#��������������
����
�
���
�����
���
�	�������
���
��9����
������� �

������	�
$�
���
'����
#��!�
�

����������$�����������$
���������

$�������
�������������
������
����������
��$�����$��
����
�&��������
��
����
���������
���!�����
��
�		�
�/������������
�����
�
	���	&���������
�����

�������)
�����#��
���
����	�!�
�

����7�����
���
����%�A�����������

���������$������*��%����
*�����A-�
�

�����������
�����������
����#�
������7�����
�!�
�

!$���&������	����	�%�����������������������'��(��������	������������	��$��
���	������	�����$������������	����	���������������	����	�$����$��������������
����#�
'�����������	����%������������������	������	������������������	�)����%���������
�$����	
�������$������������$��	�������������������������������������*��$��������
�������������	#�

)����������������������������� ��������������������������2���#��������
���
���	������*�����(�
���������
����#����������	��	�������0
����+�
���$��������������������������$���
�����
��	'��$��

���!��G����������

���

������������
�����
���
����������
#�����(�

'���������/�+�,��
��
�*�����
����)
����.��)��	���
��
���+�
���$����
#����������� �

����
�����
���
����%::��
���	�
���	����$�����
��
��%�#���������	�
�����H�
���		����	�
�����������
����!�<�
��
������
�����������	����$�������
����
	��#����:�H�	����������������
�$���
����
	�����
���>!���
����� ��
������
���
��
�������
��/������
���	��'�
���
���%���*����
���	�������������

�
�
��$���
�	��&����
��$���
�
����
���������$������	
��	�#

'��
������������������
�
		
#��I�
��
��J!�"�*��#���*������
�
�	���%��
��#���*������
�
����'����
���K!�
�

8
�
�
���
����������	�
���	����$�����
��
���	�������
�
��
#�����������)��������
���������
	�������
�
�	��
���!�<��%2����������)���%�9����
������	�
$�
���
'����
#�������2%23�����

�
�	��
���>!���������	
#��
���
����
���������
��	����
�$�%�������
����
������#����
��
���
�������
�������		������
�����	���
��
��������

�!���

�� �
������������	����!1.B"��	����
����������	����,����!6?55����
����"�����

�*���������*����-��

�� ����%����������	���$��������2��������������������������������������
%�����16B����>��
����	���
�*�
���	����
����*����$�����������2�������
�������$�2������C�������

�$�2
��#�����D���$�,��	��$�,������

$�,�%
���
4����$�'		
���;��
��$�D���
�����$�D�����

��$� ����	��
��2���#$��������

�C�
'		
��$����������,�
������-�

���������������������������������������� ����
��"�����������%��������
�$��������������1������#����������������	��
������
��$��
���		��
����
	�����
����

Page 27



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

������������

���
#���	��
	�������
����#��
��
�
��������
���������
�����
��������
�
�
��'��������	��
�����
�����
�!�

'���������1�+�8�����
���
�� ������>��������$�>��
�������������������
������

�������������	��������

�
��
��
�		�	�������������

�
�
��
��$���
�	�!�9���$����
�������
�%����	
�����������
�����$���	����
��

������
��$���
�	��#���������'�		��
�����������
������
���
���������	��
�����
�����
�!�����
��
�		������
����

�������
)
������������

�������������A��
		
#��$��
�����������
�%��������	
��
�	

'�#������
�����
�������
#��#��
��������/

��

�	����	��!�9����
�%��
���		������������$���
�
����
��� �

����������
�����������$��
���
�����$��
���
��$���
�	��#�
��
���
�����
�������
�%����	
������

��
�����$�������	��#��
���������)
����!��B������������
��
����9����
���
������
�	���	�����#��
��
������
�����		����
�����$!���
�

�!AH��
��$���
�	������ �

����
���$����:&�4�#�
���	�������������66���������&��!��
�����#�����$��
����������+
����6�������
�$��
���!3H��

������������
�
������	
#�
�
���������6�$	�������
�$�%�#�����#���
��

�������;!2H������������
������!�
�

;������.�+�
�����������	�8�����
���
�� ������>��
������$�>���������������������


�����������	�����������
������������
������$��������������������������15/5+/$����
���
����!�����
���������	������������	������
E������"

�

�

3

:

4

��

��

�3

9�
��
�

�

9�
��
���

@G
��	
��$
�
�

-
���
��
@6
��
��
��
@-



��
�

�'

)�

��

�

�@
9�

�


�
@)
���
���
$��




�
�

��
��

�

��
��
�@-

��	
��$
�
�

��
��$
�

�@9

�

���
���
	�

��
�	�
�@+


�
���
$�)


�
�

�@
-



��

��

@-
�		
��$
�


�

-
��
��
$�
@8
�

��$
�

�@,




��

��
��
��$
�
�

@-
��
��	
��

)

#	
��
@"��
	��
�<"
+"
+>

�


��
��
 �


�
@)
��
�


@9

�
	��

� 
�


��
+

���
�6
��
�


���
���

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�	
��
��
�
��

0��&��

+��&��

���&��

1�
&��

�

'���������.�+�F����
�����������2���	���,
�������-�
9���$����
�$�	�
�#

'���	������������	����������	�����
����

�������
�	����������������
�
���	����
��
��'��������	��
�����
�����
�!������
����
����
�	���	�����$�0
��+��'�
��
�		
#�����<0+�>����6�$	����������������	����$��	
#	���������������'������
�	����A%�
�����������
������	���		���
�����
��$�����&�������������		���
����
�&
������
��	���	�!��
���������
�
����
�	���	�����$������	
������������������� �

����
������	�
$�	��
��



�������
��	��
�������

�$������
������
�%����%�����'��		�%������	#����
��������
#�		���	
#�����6�$	�������
�$�!��
�

��%�*��$�������������	��������������*���������������	�����
���
�������
������#�����

�%�����!���"�%���������%�

����*��>��
�����*������$�
�������

������������	�����,��������2������-�
�

Page 28



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

8

�� ���	�%��!AH�
����
�	��
��#

'��$��$�����9	��'��
��?�����
���	�����$�0
��
+��'�
���		
#����%�3!:H�����

�����	��9


'�����3!4H����9����
��B���
��%�
�
���
���#�������� �

����
��
����
���!4H��������6�$	����
����
��2!;H�<��$�
���
�

��������

�-

'����������
��%���
�	�����>!�

'���������0�+�>���������
������������
;������0�+�@,�>������������

����������	
�	�
����	��������	�	��	�	�	�����	����
����	���������	��	 
������

��

���

���

���

���

���

���

	��


��

��

��
��
��
��
��

��
�
�
��

��
��
��
�

�

��
���
���
�
�
�
�
��
��

 �
���
���
��
��
��
��
���
� !

""

��
�#

$

��
��

%�
��

�
��
��
��&

!�
��
���

%�
���
���
'�
��

��
� �
(
(
��
��&

��
��
���
��&
���
)))

*��
���
�+
� �
,�
��

#�
��!
�-
.��
��
�� 
�(
��
���
��
���
�

-.
��
��
�'�
��
!�/
��
�

0!
�(
��
�&
��
�
�
��
��

&
��
��
��
��1
��

�
��
��
��2
��
3�

&

��
��
��/
��
�!
�(
��&

��
��
��
�4

 
������

��
��
��

��
��

���


���5

����

��������	�
���
�������������������������
������
�����������

�
�

"����������������
�
���
��$���
�	����������$����	�������,)+6��#����$
�����
���L&)�
���	����$�6�$	��������1���������
���������	�
����		��
����
������)
��������������A!�
����
�	��� �����
��#�������"��	��@)
#	���	
��	�������� �

��#�����#�		������
������� ��
���
*�������	�
��

�!�������������������		��#�������		����	�����������
#�������		���		�
�$����������
��	��
����!���
�

����������
����
#�%����
���
�����		����
'������
���������#���������
�����
����
������
�
����!�������������
���������

���� �

�@)���

@9
�	����
���

��������#�������
��$�������
�������	����#������+
����6����� �

���
���#������
��
������#�
���
��
9	��'��
��?���%�B
�����		�����"��	��%�?���	��

�������

�����	��9


'!���
�

���
���
���	�
��
���
�������$����7��	���������������������
���������������$

��!�
�������
����
#�������$�
����#�������
#�������
���	����

��	��'%������������� ���
����������	�
���#�
����$��������	���


�
����������
�#������
����
��
��!�

Page 29



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

;������6�+�@,�>���������������>���������������

!	�
�
��	���������	�	����	����	����"����	��	������	���#��

��

��

���

���

���

���

���

���

	��


��

5��

&!
�� 6
.�� ��
�� ����4  !
����

������	$��#��

��

! ���


���5

����

��������	�
���
��� ������������������������������������������

�

'���������6�+���������
���������
"����
���
������.���	��
�����
�����
�.%������$���
�$����������
��������		��$��������
��������&�����
���
�����		����7��	��������

�������)
����%�������������������������
���%����������*����
��*����������������������,������*��	�

���������
���*�������

����6������-��������������/

��������!�
�

���
�		������ �

����
������
��4��
������
��
�����������
�����$%��

��	�����	����#����

��������6�$	���!�� �

����
�����������;���.����.�
������

��		�?
��	�����

�������������
)
���
��������
���?
��	�����

������#����	
#�
�
�����������
�������		�
�����

���������
	��������
���#������#��
����
�����
�����
�!�
�

8

�� �

����
�������$���
�$������
��������������	�����
�	�����������
��
���
���	�
����������$�������


�	�������������

����	�
��%��
��$���
�	����������	���!������
�
���
���������	�������
#���������	�������������?���������%�����%����
�������
��
������������M��
���
����
���������������
���#�
���#�����

�������:��
�
������
�����
����
���
��%��������	����$�����&�;����
�)������������������

�
�
���
�%���������	�
�������

�����������'���
������������
��#�������$������
������
�

�	��(�����4���

�����
���
����
���
���#�������	�������
������4��������
����

��
����!������4���

�����
���
������	������#�
������� �

�%������9����
��<������$����>�
��������������-��������������
�!������#�
���#����������$�����
������
�(�

�� ,
�����
������)���	��<������$����>%�9����
��
�� �

�����	��9


'%�� �

�!�
�� +�!�1�
�.�%�� �

�!�
�� "��	���8��	��%�� �

�!�
�� 9�
�
������+�����		��� �

�!�
�� 9	��'��
��?���%�� �

�!�
�� ����
����
'%�+
����� �

����
�!�
�� -������)���
�	%�-����� �

����
�!�

Page 30



�
���������	�
��

���� �2� �
�����
������

'���������:�+�,������
���
�		��
����
���������		�����
�����
��� �

����
���
���������
���		���

�$�
�������&��!��
�����
��	������
�
���
�����
��

�����������)
�������		����3H��������&���#������
	����
�
�������		��$������H%�)
�����	�����$�����A!3H�������
$	�
������2H!���
���������
����
�����
�����$�������������

�������)
����!�����$
������������
�
��
�
�����
���
����� �

��)���%���
�$���
����
��������
��������������		��$����
�

�

��
����	����$��
�
������������������
���
���
���
�������
����!�����	���

��
�

���������
���

���
���	��������������������
��#��	������������
���
���������
$	�
��
�����
���������
	������
���

��������
��!���������
��
��	
��	��
������$�
���
��$�	�$�����
����
�����#������
����$��
��������������
��	����
�$��������	�������	
#!��
�

;������:�+�D���
�,�����	�������15/5G15//����%�����		����������/$555��������������
�����-��
������%��������������������������������
��*����������
���������������
��

� �H;����
,'�8�

���,� )��,� ��D>� ,�>�)>DD� >��
����
��>��@>�

9�
$	�
�� 3-9� ;!:� �!�� 3!3� �!3� A!:�

)
�����	�����$�� /6-0� A!;� A!�� ;!A� ��!;� ��!;�

�
�$�
�������� :-:� �!�� �!�� 2!�� 2!�� 3!��
8
��������
�

$�
�� 6-1� 0-1� �!�� �!�� 0-9� �!;�

����������$������
�����	��� ;!;� �!�� 2!3� 2!�� 3!�� 4!��

����
�
�������� /-9� �!:� �!�� �!3� �!A� �!��
����
�������

�������� 03-9� �3!�� ��!4� ��!�� �4!�� �A!2�

B
���
�� /-9� �!�� �!�� �!�� �!3� �!3�

+� ��	�
�������� /-6� �!;� �!:� �!;� �!A� �!��
N�
	������$������
������
�
�� 1.-5� A!�� A!;� A!�� �3!4� �3!4�

���������	��������
����������������
��������
		����������
	�����

�������6�$	��������-�	������#������������������

'���������9�+�'������	�4�
���
�������*������!'4�"�
����"��� �
��1�	���	�����
�����
��������
��������������
�
���������

��<������������
���
������
�����
����������$����	�
������� ��������
��>%���
�����
��
��
���
��$��
��
��
�
���%��
���	������
����$�������%����
������$	�����
�����
����

���

���������		�
�
���<��		���?
#�
�+���
���������
����D�?+��>����6�$	���!�������		
#��������
���
�
����
��'���
�	�������
�
�����
���
����

���$��
�����
�	���	�
�����
�����
�!��

Page 31



�
���������	�
��

���� �3� �
�����
������

�
;������9�+�4������%����'������	�4�
���
�������*������15/5�������

������!D���"�

�
�

Page 32



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

���������"1����

����
���
����������$���
�	�� �

����
����%��

��
��%�������	�����
�	�����
�	���!��2�3�
���
��3�3����		��
�����
����������
����H�
���
������	������	�����
#������6�$	���!���
#���
%�
���	
��
�� �������
�%�����������	������
��
������������$��
�
��������
����		��
������
�����!��

�����	��9


'�����������		��
���
��� �

��#��������
�����
������
����%������� ���;����		��
����#������
���
������
������		���		�#������
� �

��)���%�9����
������
������		��
���
������$�
�!�

'���������?�+�>��
�������������������	������
������*������
�������
����	
#���
#��������
�������

��������
��������������������
���������

��
������
����A!����
8

������������
������������	����������
	������
#��������
��������������H��
���
�
���		�����
�����#�
�����������
�$���������
	������
#��������
����������H��
���
���	�����#�
��!�
�������
����
#���	��
	������(�

�� ������
���������
���		�����
�����#�
����
����$��
���

��������
�
����������
���	������
����<�!�!�������������
������$�������
��$�
��$���
����$��
>!�

�� ����������
����	�
	������
������������
����
��
���������
��������&���
��	��

��
���������<�!$!��


��
�����
����������<)��>�������

'�����������
>!��

�

;������?�+�,���������4����
������������������*��������		
�����%�����

������
��������������������
����������	�������������*�������
����������*���E�����
��
������������	���������+�1556+3���������������

�

��

���

���

���

���

)
�
�

�	
��



��
��

��
��

�

)
�
�

+
�


'

�

�
		�
)
��

��

�
�

?�
�$

��
��

��



9

�
��

���
��

��



B
��

��

�
�


�
��
��
��

�
��

��

�

��

)
�
�
�
�

�
�$
��

���
��
��

��
��

1
��

��
	�C

��
��

��

�


�
	

�
�

�


��
��
��
��

,
��

��

�

��
�

�

��
��
��

6
 �
�

��

	��
��

��
�

"�
��
��
�

��

�C
��


�
��
���
��
��
��

��

�
��
�

�

,������	������

�
��
��
�

��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

��
��
��
��

1
������
�����7�����	��$

��

?��������
�����7�����	��$

��

�

'���������3�+�2������;�������D�*�
��
9
����������$�$��������	�
������������������
�����	���!��������
�����$��
���
���
��
�
����������$���

���� �

����
�������$��<;AH>��
���
���#��������
��	�	���	��<;3H>%�
����������$

��
���	�!���
#���
%����
���
�����7��	��������

���� �

����
��#�����
���		�
�
���
����

���$��
��
�������������
����	�
��!��"�����A%��
����
��� �

������9����
��
#�
���������������������$���$��������	��	
#�
��
����������$�
��������������
����
��
� �

����
�!�������������������

����
�����#���������%�#

'��$�
���
��$���
�	�
�
����������
���$������
��	���
���#���������


��������'�!�������
��������#�
��
9	��'��
��?�������	���)���
��&�� �

�%��
����
����$�
�����	���)���
���&�� �

�%�
-���
����+�
$�
��&�9����
�%�����

���8��
�&�9����
�%�-����9�
�+�
$�
��D�9����
��

Page 33



�
���������	�
��

���� �:� �
�����
������

���������
���
�����	���)���
��&�9����
�!��������
�����#�������$�����
�����

��
�
���
�������

���$��
��
�������������������

������
������	���	���
��
�������������$�
��
��$�������
���#��'��
��	�����
�

8�$�
��A���
#����������� ������%��
����������$����
��������������$
�����!�������#
�
�
��	�������
#��
����������$�
������

�����#�
	���
������

�����	�����#
����
�!������
�
��
���#
�	�������
#��
����������$�
������

������
������������ �

������9����
��
��
���$������
����#��������	
#����
����!���������
#������%�#��	��������
��������
�$��
���������������%������ �
������

��
���
�����������
������
������
�����������

����

�������

��������
�
�������
���3���
�����$���
����!������������$

��
���	�!�
�
;������3�+�2�����	����������������%��������������?�%��#�$�	���1553G/5�����15/5G//�

2�����	����������������%��������������?�%��#�

2�!��H

3�!��H

��!��H

:�!��H

;�!��H

4�!��H

A�!��H

�"�������
� �8�����$�����
���
��9�
���N�����<�������> �:&4#��'�

����������	�����������������������	���	��

B
��
	�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	
��
�
��
�

� �

����
�����A@��

� �

����
������@��

9
����������$���������������

���

$
����
���A@��

9
����������$���������������

���

$
����
����@��

�

'���������/5�+������������,��
�����
9���$�
������������	��

��������
�
����	���
���������'��

����

�$�
���	���%���������

�������������������

��
���
��<����������
�3%������������
�������
���>!�"�������������
�
#��	

'����
�������
�����������	�
�����������
������
���
������)
������������
'�
��

�
#��
��
�
����

������
�����������
��
��'��������	��
�����
�����
�!�
"��� �

����
��#�������
��
���������
���		��������

	���	�
�������#
��$��(�
������
��
���
�<�

�����$��3��
��>��������
�:�<�

�����$������
���>!�
8�$�
��������������
���
��	���	��
��
����������#������������
�����#������� �

����
��
����#������������
��	����
�$�!�

���������������������������������������� ����
�����������	
��

�����	�
���

�����

��
��������
��
���������
��	
��������	���
	��	
���
������
����	��

��
�
����
��
��
�����
��
�
������
��
��
��
�����	����������	
	��	
��
��������
���

	�
��������
���������	
��

�����	�
��
�
��	��
�	
��

�����

��
�
������ �

�����	
��
!��������

���
�

��
	��
�"����
��
���
�����	
��
��	���
�!�#�$��

%��
&'�

�����	���
��(


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
$)
��
���������	
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
+,
�	���
,
���
�
���
��
$)-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	
.

��������
+/
�	���
*
���
�
���
��
$)


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
,/
��
�����	�
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
+)
�	���
+$
���
�
���
��
,/-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	
.

��������
+$
�	���
0
���
�
���
��
,/


���
�����
��
	��
���	
������
������	���������
�������
��
���������	
��

�����	�
��
�	
��
	��
����
���
��	�
�����
��

���
���
����
��
�
��	��
�

Page 34



�
���������	�
��

���� �;� �
�����
������

"��
������
�����
%��		�����
������
����	
#���������
��	����
�$�!�����)������������
��$�����
����%��
		
#������)��
#�		�����-����� �

����
�!�<������
����$����$�
���

�
���4@A����-����� �

����
������	�
�����
����	��������
���%������
��������
��

���$�
�



>!�
9�����
�:��
#���
����������
������$��%�#����� �

��)������$��������	����$��
����������
����
��	����
�$��#�����	�
����������<�	�
�����H>����	�
���
�����#��������
���
�
����
������
��

���	��	
#�
��������������
��	����
�$��$

������

���������3&��H�

�������
'!�
�

;������/5�+��������������������
������������������8����155:����1553�!���������8����"-��
>��
���$���	�����������������������%��������	���������

3!�

�!�

:!�

;!�

4!�

A!�

��!�

��!�

��!�

�2!�

���:@�; ���;@�4 ���4@�A ���A@��

8���



��
��
�
��
�
�

6�$	��� � �

����
� )��
# �		 � �

��)��� +
����� �

����
� N�	��
��-������

�� -����� �

����
�
<��

6�$	���

� �

��)���

-��)

)��
#�		

� �

����
�

+��)

N�	��-������

��

�
�

;������//�+�����������������8����:����
�����155:����1553�!���������8����"-��>��
���$�
��	�����������������������%��������	���������

��!�

��!�

�3!�

�:!�

�4!�

��!�

��!�

���:@�; ���;@�4 ���4@�A ���A@��

8���



��
��
�
��
�
�

6�$	��� � �

����
� )��
# �		 � �

��)��� +
����� �

����
� N�	��
��-������

�� -����� �

����
�

<��

� �

��)���

6�$	���

� �

����
�

)��
#�		

N�	��-������

��

-��)

+��)

�

Page 35



�
���������	�
��

���� �4� �
�����
������

'��2���#��������,��
���	������*���������

���
��������	�����	��������(�

+	&������	��������#�
�

���������������7�
������
������������������
���	
7����	�(&��
2���#�����������
���	������*����������$����=���
���+����������
����

�����
	��������	��������-�
�

���������
����*���

$������������������
��������
�������������������
���������������

����������������������������
�����-�
�

-�����>�
��
$��������������		��$��
��
����������3����
������#�����>���$����
�
��'���������
�������������������$
����������

#�
�%������������	��
���������

���#�		������
�
���������������
��
�����������������������#���
���
������������

�	��!�
�

�������������		�
��
#��	���$	���������������
����
���		������������$�����
���
��
� �

��)��������9����
�������
���7����	�%���������#��
�������
�����

�����
�������
	��!��+�����#�������
��
$������������������������/

��

�	�����������)
����%�
�

�����$�#

'�������$��!�"���������	������������$
������

����
����
��
���#������
�!�
�

-��������
�$������������
���	���#����#���
����
�(�
�� ��#��������		�����������������������������	������������������

�$����
����

�
��������������
��
�� ��+����������������������	����������*��������������������
�$�������	�$��	��

����������
����
�����
������
�������
��
�����
�����$���$������&�	
��%���

��
��
�������������!�+����&�	
����������������
���	#������
��
��
������������������
#��������������
������
��
����
�%���������������	���������
��������#����#

�!�

�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������
��*�����;����
�����
��������(�
2���#�����������
���	������*�����������%�������������������=����
��#����D���
�
�������������� �����
���������	��������-�������������/

������������������		�


$�������
�����
�	����'���
������

�����!������	�
�����������
������?
��	��
���
�$
�������
�#�
��$
����
��������
�������
��#��������
��������������
�������	�����!�
"��

�������#�������������������#�#����
��#

'��$��������
��$�
���
�������

��
$����
�%������
����	�
(�

�� ��������	������
�����
���

/����#�����������
$�������	���
������������������	����
#�
��������������
���

�� -

'��
���
$������

	��#�����


��������
��	������������
�� B������
�����������$���
������
����������I�
���
�K��
����
�� 8�#�
��
��$���
�	�������#�
	���
�����6������
�%�6��	
�����������
�����$�

<�66�>�
�� 0
��)	����	��'��$�#����	
��	����	
��
���
�
���
�
��

����������
�� ���
�����������%�����
������������
	�����
��$�
��

����������

��
��$���
�	�!�
�� 9�������������������	��	���

��)���E�����������9�
���������

�����,��

�
�����������9����
�����#�		����� �

��
�� 8�
���
�?
��	��
����$
�������
�#�
��������$�����$����������	��	���

��'�		��

����	
�������������

���$����	
����	���!�
�

�
#���
�����#����#

����
�������
��������!��������������
���������
��
������
������������$�����������	��
	���%�����

$�������
��	�����$�!��

Page 36



�
���������	�
��

���� �A� �
�����
������

�����
����
�����$����		��$������� �

����
���
���
(�
�� 6���
�������������#�� �

����
��)	�����	�)
������
���$�,

��������		��

����

�����
��9
��'��$�����)��	��
�����
�����
��������
	�����������������
�
	
��	������
����
��#�		�����	��������
��
����
���������
�����������)
�����#����
����������
����!�

�� 6���
�������.9
��'��$�����)��	��
�����
�����
�.��
���������
��������
�������	��
��/

��	��'�
���
	������

����		�

$�������
������� �

����
�������
���
�����
��
����
����
��
����#�������
���#��!��������
�	�����

�

��������
���	��������
��
������)��	���
��
���+�
���$�!��"��#�		��������	��

��������	�������
-�		����$�9
�
���
���
���������
�����������/

��
�

�����������#�		��	�
��������	�
�

�����)
��������+��������
���
�������������?
��	�6���
�
������
���
������
�
�	�������
���
����	�
!�

����������������
/-�������������
��������	����������
�������)�

������������
9��1�
���������������	�������-�		&9���$�9
�
����
�	���������
�����9
��'��$�����
)��	��
�����
�����
���������/

��
�

�����

��������	�������

��������)
����!�
��)��	�
�������O
��$���
�	�.��9
�
����
�	��������������������
��
�����������#

'�

������)��	�
��.���
����
��������
����������
�	��
��

��
�$�	�
	��
�������'���
��

���
��������
�������'�����
�

��������
$��������$�����
���
#��

$
�����
�����
������
�
�!��������
�	�����	����������$����������	
��	��
�/���

�����

�����%����2�����
���3!��������	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	��
�7��
�����

��������	�����
�������
�	����#��
���

$
��������
��
����
$��!��
�

1-�������������
��������	�����	���������,
�����
�,�������������@�����
9��1�
��������� �

����
�.��� �

����
��)	�����	�)
������
���$�,

�����
�	�������
��		����$���&�����
���
��
��

$
������
��#

'�����$�����
��
��'��������	��
��
���
�����
������ �

����
������
��������������
���������	�������-�		����$�9
�
�!��
�

.-�������������
��������	�������,�����������	����
���������������D���
�
>����������
�����������
9��0�������������)
��������+��������
���
���������?
��	�6���
�
������
���
�����
��
�	�������������������
�����������
������������#�		�
��
�����
��	�������
���
�����
9
��'��$�����)��	��
�����
�����
�!�
�

Page 37



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

,�������.�+�4����
����
��&��*���������,������

�����*����
�

'������������������������
������������*��������������������
��

���������
���������������
�%�

���������>������*����*�������
����	�������������
��	��������-�
8
�
����
���$
������	����	���#�����������	����.)����
�		�������.�&����������
�	
�$�
�����
����!���������		��$��#�		�����
�����������������

���������
��$����
�$�������	��	�����%�
�������		����������������
��
������
��#

'������#�����

�$����
�	��.���
�
��	�
��
����������!�
�������	�������	
#���
#��#���������
��	���
������
�#�!�

)����������������������������� ����������������!�� �"�����������
4����
����
��(�
1����
��$�������������$������	����	�������#�		����$�����������	�!�-��F�9�������
�����	����	��������������
��	� �����$�&��������
��
��	� ������
���������#������
�	���
�
���	���
������������������������
���
�������!��"�����*����������������	�'����������!�
�

�����$����������%�����0+�����������
�������	�	�$���
���������/����&�
8

�� ���	�%�#��'�
#�����(�

�� 1� ����� ������������
����
����������
����
��
�������	����

��
�&�������
�����������
���������

����2�%������
�	������ �

����
���������
��������<AH�

�����	��>!�"�����*���
����	���
�����#�����
������	���	����
����$�

���		��$%�����#��
���'�
#�������

����
�	����������
����

���
���
#�
�������$��
���������

�
�������
��
���
�����
��!�

�� ?���	��
����/

������	��		�������	�'������E
��
�����
��

�������,����
��
����	�������
���
��
����$!�

�� � �

����
�.������������$�
�����
#������
������
��
��$�)
�����	���	�����	����
#��������
��	����
�$�������
���#


���$���#�
���
���!�

�� B�����
���������������6��
$������������������

���	���
������	�&��
�������
���
��
�
�����������		���������	��
��
�����	����3����
�!�

�� ����
��	��������
#����
	����$����������
�	��#���������	����	����

�	�����
��
���
���$�	�������$�������!����������
��	�.�����������
�1����	�"		�������
����
����.���
#������(�

�� ������
�����$��
����
�	���$
����$������P1����	��		������������		�����	�'��
����
���
*����
�������

��;�H�����AA3���
�;;H��������!�

�� ������
�����$�������$������#
�	������
��

���	����	'��$��
����
�����

�
����	�������
���
�������
������	����	���

����

��::H�������A��
�;�H�
�������!�

�� ������
�����$�������$������#
�	�����	����
��

���	����	'��$��
�����
�
���	
��
���
�������
������	����	�����		��
�32H%��
���
����
���H����
����!�

Page 38



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

)����>*�����������������	����*���������*�����(�
�����
����������
�$�	
��	��

�����
��	���������(�
�� ����������
����

�����
������#�������	���
�$�����
�	�����'����
�#

'�����

��������������������	����$����������
��
$�����%�������������
�������
���
#�
����$���
��$������!�

�� 1����	����	�����
������
������
���$������������

���!��+�
�������
��
��������������
��
��������������

�������	!���

�� 1���������
���
�������
������	�����

��
��
���
�����
���&��!$!��

��
�
����		��$����$���
�	��
��������������

������������
�.��	'��$����
�����.!�

�� �����
������
���$�
�������������
�����������������

�������	����#��������
����
��	������������
���$�!�

�� )�
�
���

���
�	��#���������	����	����

�	�����
������������$��

����#�	�
���
���
��������,�&
���

�����
�
���
��'�!�

�� 0
����������
	������
�����
����
�������

����	�
�����������	����#�		���	���
���
��
�����
	
$���	��

�	������
	������#�		���'���
���������

����������	�!�

'����������

���
��������	�����	��������(�
����
���
�-�������������������	��
%���������������
��������		��	�������	��$��

����
��

�!������� ��
����
�����		��$������	����(�

�� 1���������$�#����#����������������#������$������$�
��
�
���!�
�� Q����$	��$�����#���#�������

���+���
������#����������.�����������
���	���

������.!�������
�����
��� ���������
���
�����

�������
���
�������������#

'��
������

��������	��		����JJ������	��		������
#���
����������

���
��	� �������

�����������$����'�$��������������	���
����!��"�������
���
������
#������#�		�
#

'���

��	�!�

�� �����
����
�/
�������		������	����	�����
�������
��	���
�$
���������
��
������
����
��	�.�
����	���-���
���1����	����	��.�����������!��

�� ,��)
������
��
��#�		������'��$�����
�����
����+��
������
���$���		��
��
�
������ �����
�

��
!�-��#�		�������
�'�����
����������
����
����
��$������
����$�!�

�� ����	
�$���
���������
������
������
��#�		���	��
���

�$���
����
������
��
��
�����
	
$���	��
�����
���&���������������7��	����������������
����
���
���	�
����������$��� ��
��������$��
�	���	��
�������	
����������
���
���
�����!�

�� ����
�����	���
������� �

�����	�����+�8
������
���
���������
#�� �������
���
������������	����	����
�����

�������
�����
��	����������

�����$������	�
���	�����
�����!������������
��������������������	��
%��������#�		�������

������
�
'�����
������
���

!��

)����
�����������������������������������������������������

��*�����;���������
��������(�
,

���

$
�����������������(�

�� 1����	����	�������
#���
�	��
�������$������������/

��
���
��&��������
�	
�$�
�
�������)����
�		����
����!�

�� ���
���������������

�����
����
��
	��
���
�	������
�������������
�����!�
�� �����
����
��
����	�
$���

	������$����

������	����	�����
������#�		���	���
�

.$	��.��
$����
�������+�����?
��	�����

����������
������
���$���
�����!�
�� 1

��������������������$������
���
�
���

���
�	��#���������	����	���

�

�	���!�

Page 39



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

2F��
�� -���������
�$$	����
���������

��������
���
��������
����

������	����	���&�

�������������������

���	������$�#
���	���#�����������
��	�	���	!�

����������������
/-�����������
���������	������������
9��0���������� �

����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	������
����������
��	��
�
�$
������
���$���������	�����

������	����	������� �

����
�!�"����
�	������
��������		�

���������&$

�����
���	����$�����
���
���
��
������
������$
�������
�������

����	�
��%�
���	�������
	��
���
�	�!�
�

1-� ���������*��%�
��
���2�������
9��0���������� �

����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	������
�����������
�

	������$�����

������	����	����
��
����#��������
��#

'��$����������	���
�
���	�����������	����	����
������
���$!�
�

.-� ����	��������������������
9��0���������� �

����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	������
�������
������$��	�
���
��������
��������
�/���

�����
���$
�����

������	����	�����
������
���� �

����
�!�
�

0-�������������������
��
���������
9��0����������������	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	������
��������������	���
"��
	�������9
�
�������		����$�$���#���������	����	�����
��������
��������
�
������
���������
����
���
������

#�
������
����#���

����		�����
������	�����$��

����!�
�

6-�����������
��������	�����	���������,
�����
�,�������������@�����
9��0��������%�� �

����
��)	�����	�)
������
���$�,

�����
�	��������$
�����
�
��'��������
���
����

�������
�������
������
���$�
����+������	����	�����
��������
�
�

���%������������
�	������
��$��������

�$���	����$�����		�

	�������
���$�����
���
��
���� �

����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9
�
�!�
�

Page 40



�
���������	�
��

���� �2� �
�����
������

,�������0�+������������������	���������
�
���
��������	�
��

�����$�	�$������������

������
����	���$�������������
��
��������
���
�
��
�����!�������������

������������(�

�� �����������
���������
������������������

�

��
���������	�����-����
���
�����!�
�� �����
���������������	������������	��

����������
����
���
����'��
������	���
�	���!�
�� ��������
�������	������������

������������
�!�
�� ������������	�����
���$���	

���
����
������	
�$���
���
�����
�����������

������������
����������������

'�����������
�#�����	�����
��
�����
��������
�����
���������
����
�����	��������
���	���
��#�����#������
�����

�!�

�� ����
��'�
��$�����$�����������������
�;�������$
����
����
�����#
������������
�
��������$
����
����
��������!�

�� ����
��'�
������	
���$�����������������
����������$
����
��

���
�	��#�
��
��
��
��
�����<9
���1����"��� �
��
�3��>!�

�� �������������=����		�
���*����������
������
���
��������+����� �

����
��
�	
��!�

�� ��H�
���		������
����������
�$��
�&��
'�
���
��	��'����
�
������!�
�� �����������
�������
��	������'��$�������������	����$���
��
!�

�

���������������/5B��	������%������$����������
		
#��$���������%����������
���
��
��

���
�����
����

��	�#��$�������$

�(��

�� ����H���		����������
�����
��
�		!�
�� ��2�H�
������
������������
�	������
���������!�
�� ��3�H�
������
�����
������&
�	�������������

�������
�<�!$!��
#�	�

�����
>!�
�� ��A�H����
�����������������
���
����$���!���
�� ����$���������
������
������	

���
����
���������
	����

	�	���	�!�

)����������������������������� ���������������������������������(�
����'����������

������0+����
�(�
8

����	��(�

�� ?���	��
��
����������
��
��:���
��$
����		�����
�����$�����
��		�%�����	���	�����
� �

����
���
���
��7������
���$������
���
��
��<��H��

�� 
���
���
���#����
�3�H�����
��		�>!�

�� ����
��	�
������

����	��
��������
��������
��
��������

�����&�H���
����
%�����
�����
���
��������$�
����

�� 
����
#����	�$�����		�&���
�$���
����#�	�
����
�����
��	������������
�	�����/������.�	��.����
�
����
�
!�

���������������������������������������� ����
�����������	
��

�����	�
���

�����

��
��������
��
���������
��	
��������	���
	��	
���
������
����	��

��
�
����
��
��
�����
��
�
������
��
��
��
�����	����������	
	��	
��
��������
���

	�
��������
���������	
��

�����	�
��
�
��	��
�	
��

�����

��
�
������ �

�����	
��
!��������

���
�

��
	��
�"����
��
���
�����	
��
��	���
�!�#�$��

%��
&'�

�����	���
��(


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
$)
��
���������	
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
+,
�	���
,
���
�
���
��
$)-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	
.

��������
+/
�	���
*
���
�
���
��
$)


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
,/
��
�����	�
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
+)
�	���
+$
���
�
���
��
,/-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	
.

��������
+$
�	���
0
���
�
���
��
,/


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
./
��
�����
��
�����	�
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
$+
�	���
+
���
�
���
��
./-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	

.
��������
+*
�	���
1
���
�
���
��
,/


���
�����
��
	��
���	
������
������	���������
�������
��
���������	
��

�����	�
��
�	
��
	��
����
���
��	�
�����
��

���
���
����
��
�
��	��
�

Page 41



�
���������	�
��

���� �3� �
�����
������

8

�)��	�
��(�
�� ��
�$����	�
��%�	���	��
��
��������
���

���$������

����4H�
��
������
�����
�

���	�
��%�
����$��
���H�
�����
�:����	�
��!��������
#������������$��

������
��	

����������'��$��

�	���	��� �
�����$
����		�����
������#��$������
�
�����
%�
#�������
�:�	���	������$��	�
����
��	��
������
��	���	�!��������������

�$��
���
����
����
�����$�	���	��
��
�����������
��$����	��!�

�� ����
�	�����	��.$

�.��
��������
�$�����'����������	��
������
��
���
���	�
���
�����
��&�)�����
��������	
������
�#���������
���
���������������
�������
	���	���
����$��������	����$��
��������)�����
���
���#��������
����
������)
����!��

�
#���
%����������%�������*���		�������#��
�� �����
�������	���	��
�����	��

��
�����������������
�������������
�������
��		��

�������� �

����
�����
���������
��<���:&����>!���������$

����#�����
�
�����
����
���	������
����$�������������
�������!�

�� �	�
%�� �

����
�.�����	�
����
������	
#�
�	���	��
��
����������������
�����
��	�
�
����
��
��%�#����� 
��
������
�����
�	���	���

�����H�	
#�
����������
��		��
<4H��
���
���#����AH>��������
�:�	���	���

����3H�	
#�
�<��H��
���
���
#�����AH>!�

�� � 
��������'����
���
��
��

���

��
�����������
��� �
�����	���	��������	��!��"��
�
�����
����������	���������������������������������������*������������
>��
���������������������
����������*��
���
�����*�������
�����
���������
������>��
������
	��
���������
!�+����������������
�����$��
����
�	�����
� �

����
����
���������$����
�$�	�
���������������#��'�����
��������
�
�����
�
�
��:H%����������������>��
���%�#����������
�����
����3���
�	����
���������$�

�$�	�
	���
���
����������	�������
!�,���������<,���� �

����
��������>����
���

�������

/��������� �

����
������������
��
��������
���������
����������$

��
� ���	��
��?
��	�,
��
����������������+�#

'��$������
���
����!�8

�
� ���	�%�������0����
�����A�
��
��2%������
�	���������'�����
�����,��
�������������������������������%��

����-�	'��$�����B
����
����

�������
�
���������������������
����
���������
#�������43H�
����
������
	�����
��
	�����$����

���������	������	�������
���	�!�

�

�
����������

���������������
�������#����
��������
��������
���
#������#�
���
���!�
8�$�
�������
#����#

�������������
�
��

����������#�����#�����������������
������
I8

���$���B��

�K�#�����	

'�����������	����
�������	���	������$�������

��6�$	����
����-

	�����	����
$�������
���
������
���
��#

�������������
�
����������	���	��
��

���6�

��!���
�

Page 42



�
���������	�
��

���� ��� �
�����
������

;������/1�+�
���������������������������������������

�
��������B�����������������������������AA2�&���2�
+
�
��(�&���������������

�����	���+�
����6�$	���%��������������������������
���	�����-����

�6�

��

�

�

��

��

��

��

2�

2�

3�

3�

�A
A2

�A
A3

�A
A�

�A
A:

�A
A;

�A
A4

�A
AA

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�2

��
�3

��
��

��
�:

��
�;

��
�4

��
�A

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�2

��
�3

��
��

��
�:

��
�;

��
�4

��
�A

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�2

��
�3

��
��

��
�:

��
�;

��
�4

��
�A

��
2�

8���

B
��
	�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
		
��
��
�

�
��������	���	��
�����������<6�

��>

�
��������	���	��
����������<6�$	���>

'����������

���
��������	�����	��������(�
�

����	�������������������������������������������
�	����
�����

�����	�������
����
�������	���	��������-�)������������%�

������,�����$�������	������������
���#
�����������
��-�
�

����
��'��
��
��������
��
���
��!��������������
��	
���$�#��$����
����
���	��
%��������%�

������#�
	�������
����������		�$
��$���!�-��F�9������%�
������#�
	�%����-����
��
�
������������������%�/�������	����$����.���
�$�.�	���%������������
��
����
���
�������������
����
�������������

��	�#��$��!�
�

���
������
����
��

���������������

�� �

����
�%������
����
�$���
�/���������'��$�
�
�
�

��
�����������	�
��

��

������
��!��"��#���
��
���
����������

����
���
�����'�����
I
����$�����K�#�������
�������	���
����

���
��
��������������$���

����������������
��$��	���	��
���������	�������	����#�����#�		�
���	�!��"���������
�����������#���
��������
�
���'	��
��������������
���
����%�#�����������
���
��	����$�����		�

	�!��
�

���
�������$����
�����
���

�����
����)
����	���
�	��'��������

���
��,��
�
������
��
�%�

��������
����

���	����
�����	������	��������%����	��������

������
���

	���
��
�������������$����$������
������!��"�������
����	�
	�����

������
���'����
�
��	�&�
&$
�������

�����
��
���
��
��������
�	�����
���$�
��������������
����	����&�
������

����#��������
������

��������
���
���������	�������
����������

�$�
���	���!�
�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������

��*�����;���������
��������(�
�

$
�����$������
��
��������
������������$���
�		��$

�!�������		���

���

�$�
�
��
���
�����#

'��$�����������������%�����
�������#�����'�����
�
��	��������
�

����
����������	�������-�		����$���
���
����%����
��������#�		�������������#����������#�
���	�������-�		����$�9
�
�!������������
����������	��������
�����������

�$��	�������
� �

����
��$
��$��

#�
�!�

Page 43



�
���������	�
��

���� �:� �
�����
������

&���'����
"�������

�����������	���
������
��
�	���	��	���	��
�����	��
������������������	����������
�������$���
�	��
��	���
�!�"��#����
���������
�	���	�����

����
����$����������	��	��
��

�$��$���
�	��
��������������������
������
��
������	���������������	��������	������������
�

���	�����
���
�
���
�����

���	�!�-��#�		�������
��
��������
���������
��	�
��������������
��&
�����
�����������

 ���
������
���

$
���!���
�
+��������	�#

'�
��
���������������
��$

��/
����#

'��$����#����

$�������
��!�
;�

�%����������=�����+�������������	����
�������������������������*�������
����
����$�������=������#�	�����������������������$���+*���������+������������������
������������%��#�%������������

����=��������	��������-�"��#�		������
����	�
	��
���

������
��
����������
����)
����	�%�,��)
������
��
�%�)
�����)
����	%����

	��
����������#����	������	���������������
��������
�����)
�����)
����	!��������#����	���
����-�		����$�9
�
��#�		�����������
��	�

	���
��	�������
����$������#

'��

#�
��!�

����������������
/-�����������
��������	����������
�������)�

������2����������������
���
'����*������2�����
9��1�
�������%�� �

����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9
�
������������������
�����	���
"��

�������9
�
����
�	����
���������$����$������
��������������/

��
�

���%���
�	��
����	
��	���
$�����

�� �

����
��������
�	��
�$�	�
	���
���

��

$
�����$������������
��
$���!������
��
��������

����%��		�?
��	�����

�����%�,��)
������
��
������
���	��#������
��
��
���������
���
���������$����$������
����������������

�����
�

�

�����
�

���!�
�

1-���E���������	�������+*������,���������������
9��0��������%�������#����	������	����������
�	���$
��������


����������
��	�&�
&
$
������
���$���
��
�����������
����
������%�
������	��
���		�

$�������
������
� �

����
�!��������
�	�����	����#

'��$��
$����
�#�����		�?
��	�����

����������,��
)
������
��
�!���������
�	�������
���������������	�������-�		����$�9
�
��
�

.-� ���������������������
�����������)��#�����	������������
�����������2�����
9��0��������%�����+�

�����
���
�����9
�
��#��������������$����������
&

��������
����I,
�������K��

/����<������		
#����
����#�����
&

������
��
���������	����������
���������������#��������
����)
����	���������	���+�
�����>���
�	������
�����������
������������������������	��$
��$����
���������
�!�

Page 44



�
���������	�
��

���� �;� �
�����
������

,�������6�+��
����
&�)���7��8����
�����(�
?�������
.�������	�B��

�������	������������
��'��$��

�������	�
�
	�#�����������
��
��/

��
���
���

���������
��
�����	������� �

����
���

������
		
#��$�����
���
��(�
�

/-� �
����
������������������������������
����05�������
"��6�$	���%����
�$�����	���	�
�
	��
�������
������
��������3�H��������A;�!��
����$
������	
#���
#������
�������
���������
�������
�!�

�

;������/.�+��
����
�,������������������F<�

D�������	�������
����
��������
��������������F<$�/3?:�+�1559

�

�

3

:

4

��

��

�3

4:&
4;

4;&
44

44&
4A

4A&
A�

A�&
A�

A�&
A�

A�&
A2

A2&
A3

A3&
A�

A�&
A:

A:&
A;

A;&
A4

A4&
AA

AA&
��

��&
��

��
��&
��

��
��&
�2

��
�2&
�3

��
�3&
��

��
��&
�:

��
�:&
�;

��
�;&
�4

����


��
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
�



9��

-���
+��
���
)���

�
��	��	�
�
	

�
+
�
��(��"���������
���	�
�
	�+�������8���������I�
��'��$����,
����9
�����K�###!���!

$!�'��
�

1-� 4�������
��������������������������#����
�*�
������
������������
��'��
�����E�
�
���	���	��

.-� �
����
��������������������������
����������������#�����������
��'��$�
�������$���
��'��$����
���
����������$

��!��)
�������
����
�$��
��$�
#
����������������
�����$�
����	�!��

0-� �
����
$�%������������$����������������������
	�������!�"��������
��
�!�
�� "��6�$	����������:%��:%�2:���
�	��������

���	�
�
	&
�	�����������!��
�� ���������
�
����������

���	�
�
	&
�	�����	���
��������������	�
���

�
��	����������	����������!��
�� �	�
�
	�������������
��
������	���
%��
#�	%��
����%���

��%��
���%�	�
�� �

����
��
���$��M�����������
���
�


���%�
���������
��	���������������
����������
���		�'����!�

�� �	�
�
	����
���
����	���

��

����A��%�������������
���������
����
�
�
�����	�����
��		����
����
%�������������
����$�<������
�����
��;�H��������:�
���
�����#��������@�2��������4@�A>!�

6-� �
����
���������������������������������
���*��
��
��
����
��	��
���
���	�
�
	�������		��(��������
���	�
�
	��
���:;H�	����������;���������
�A4;!�

Page 45



�
���������	�
��

���� �4� �
�����
������

:-� �������
�������	�����	��
����
������*���������
��������
�������������
��
�$�%�����������
����������.����.�	���	�
���
��'��$��
��
�
��$���#�����������	��!���	��
�$����
��������$��
��3�����
�%��
��'��$������		�
��
����
���	�
�
	�����
����������
��'�
�����
����������������

'�!��8

���
���
#�
��
��'���
��������	
#�	���	%������

���
�������
�3�����
��#�
��
��'�����
��
���%��	�
�
	���������������
��'�
�����
����������������

'�!��8

���
���
������
�$�%��
��'��$�������
����
���	�
�
	����
����������
��'�
�������
%����
������
������
	����!����

���6�$	���%��

����
���
�����	��������
��������	�
�
	�.�
������*%��	�
�
	�
��������2���
�	���
������������!�
9-� �
����
�������������	���
�����������
����%��#��
?-� �
����
�	��
�����������
�����*�������������$����������
����
�
��
�
��
#��%�

�������		���������������$����#��'�����
3-� �
����
��������� 	����+
�������*��������� ������
�
��������	���������$��

��������	���
����
�������� ����
!�
/5-��������
������������	����
����
���
���������������	���������������������
?
��	��������������
#�������
����
����������
�	������
��	�
�
	����� �

����
�!���
����$
������	
#���
#���
#��
�����	��������
��������
��	�
�
	�
�	�����
�
�����
����
��
����$������	�����������
����
�����#

��������	�������
!��

�

;������/0�+��������
���������������������������
����
�

%
���	&
"���	
�	'
������	��"����
��	��	()�
�������	������
�����	�
	���
�
�	
*������	�
�����
��	+���	����,-	.//��/0	�
	./1/�11

�

�7���

�7���

�7���

�7���

�7���

�7���

	7���


7���

57���

��7���

����8�� ����8�	 ���	8�
 ���
8�5 ���58�� ����8��

&

"

��
�

6���

1�(���

2�����0����

�

���9�':'�;:<=>������������������%����!�*����(��
���+�*�����
�����7�#%'�-.�����!
���6������� �

���������������������������������������� ����
���������	��	���
����'������
����
�������	����
�����
�������
���
��������
���������
���
��
�����	�<�!�!����������>�������
��
�����
�#�
		��

���
���		�����
������	���
��	�
�
	!�����$
��������

�

��
��
���	�
�
	�
�	������������
����
�� �

����
��
�
�����	���������&�����
�	������
������
		
#��$����	����
�����
��M�

�� 9
����������
%�)���
����%����
��
�������

�	���%�Q���������������������%�Q
���
���
�����������
���
�

�

Page 46



�
���������	�
��

���� �A� �
�����
������

)����������������������������� ���������������������������
����
(�
?�������
.��
��

������
���������������		�(�
���
���
���#
�������
������
���'�!�
�>������
��������� �

����
����



���������
��	��
�����#�		�&��
�		���������
����
�������	���	��
���
��'��$��
��$
����		��
����$������������
�������
��
� ������$��

�������

�����

���
�
���
����
�����
���	��������
���
���		����	��%�
���������������
���!�
�>��	��
�$�������
�������$
��$���%�
������#�
	�%�� �

����
�.��	���	���
�������
������
����6�$	�������
�$�!�
'�������$�%�������*������������
���������
�%�����*���������������A����*�����
%����-�

'����������

���
��������	�����	��������(�
������
����#& ()*�������
�

�����

�� �

����
����������
��	��
	���
�������

�$��
�
������
��&��������������
������$���
�	��
���		��$����
��
��'�������	�!��
�

,�%����%�������
���������������I���
������������������������
��
�����K%������		�����
��������
����
��������
�����������#�
	������
������
������
����
�����������$�!�"�����
��$�	����	�'�	����������������

�����	�������������	�������

�������������'��$����������
#����
���������

E�%�
�	� ���	�������$�	�#����������	��
��#���������	���
��
����
�
��'��$!�
���#����������
	�����
��
�����	����#�
������������$���
�$�
���$���
'��$���������&
��	��	�$��	���
�%��������	����
���
�������
���
����
����
�����.�
������
�.������$��
#��������
�����
��	�
�
	!�"�����������

��
�����
��'���������������%���	�'����
'��$%�
�	�
�
	�����
������
�����������������	���
�%������������	�
�����	��������������
�
���	���������J!�9�������%�������
���$
��
�#�����
'��$JJ!�
�

�����	���������#�������#
&��$�����
���$�(�
�>��
�#����#�������
�������#���������	�������������#���������

���
��'��$��
�� �����
��

�$���������
��
���		��$��$

���!�
�>�"����������������
��������
����	������'��$��	����
��
����������
�����

�$��.��
��
����������
�.����

�����!�
�

-���
��$

�������
������������
������ �

����
������#����
�	������

���
��#����

�
��	��&	�$�����
��������������������#

'��$�#����?
��	�����

�����%�������+�����

���
���
���
�!�+
���
������$

��#

'��
��������
#��������������� �������
�!�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������

��*�����;���������
��������(�
?�������
.��
��
��������
��#������	�
�
����		��
���
��$�����
�
���
������������
��
��
���$���

�� �

����
�!�������������������������#�		!�����#���
���$���������	��������
����������$�����
���������#�		&

$���������
���$��$

���#

'��$���

��������


$�������
��!�

Page 47



�
���������	�
��

���� 2�� �
�����
������

�

��
���
��2��
�

�����
����$����$�� ���	���
��$

���

$
���(�
�

�!� )
���������������
�� N�
	�����
����
�����������
���������
���		�����
�
�������������
#������
���

�
������
!��?��������$�
����

�0�	��D�+�����������
#������
�����
���2H����
���������
�
����
	�����
������
���
���#���������������
����
�����	����
���
!�������������
��	�
���:A���#�
��
�����/���������
���2��
����!������)����
����������$$����
������
�%�#������3���#�
���
	�����
��������������������
�
��
	�������
!��������
����������	
�$���
���
�����

���		��$��
����
�������

���
����)
����!��"��������
�%�
���
��$���
$�������������
������
�����	��
��	��
��
�	������C6�#�
��
����/�
�����������
������
��
��'��$���
�	��������
#��
��;�H�
������
�����
�����������������!���������������
���
����
���
���#�
�
������	
���������������C6�����
�	��������������
�
����$�������
��4�
#�����	�
�
	�
�	������
�����
��!�

�!� ���	���
�� )
��
���������$����	����������������

�������

�,�������
���
�

�
������
��
���
���	��#����
���
��$��������

�
���

�	��

���	���
�
������
�	�
�
	�
�	�������
�!��������
������������
�����������	������
��7�����
����
�
$�����������
���	�
�
	�����'����������������
������
��
�����
���
���	������
����

�����

���$	�!�

2!� )��	�
�������O
��$���
�	��
�� ?���
���	���������
		
#&���������������

��������

	���

���	����
��

����	��	���

�������
���
����������������
���	�
�
	��������
�������

�
��������
��#�����
��$���
�	�!��-

'�����	�
�����
#����
���	���
��$���
�
��
#�
�����
�������������������$��	�
�
	!�

�����������������
/-� ����������
���������	������������
9��1�
������������� �

����
��)
��������+��������
���
�������������� �

����
��
�
�$������	�
�
	�����
���������
�	���
���
�������	�
�
	��
������
��������
��
����������
��
�������
�

�����!�-������������
���#

'%�������	��&�$��������

����
��
�����	�
�
	�+�
���$��,

���������������������������
������		������	
���!���
�

1-� �����������
�������������
�������	�%��+�����%����
9��1�
�������%������ �

����
��)
��������+��������
���
�������������� �

����
��
���	�������-�		����$�9
�
����
�	�������
��������$
����������������� �

����
��
)
��������+��������
���
�����#�		���'����	����

	��
��������$�
���
��������
����

�
�	�
�
	�������������$��

$
���!�������

$
������
�	�����
��

�����
������ �

����
��
���	�������-�		����$�9
�
�������������	���"��

�������9
�
�!�
�

.-� 
��*�����������>���������
9��0����������������

��������.���.�
�����	��������$�����
�	�����#���	�������
��

�$�
���� �

����
�����	

����
������
�������������%��
���	����
�	���
�����
������
������
�
��	����	�����
���
���
��'��$��	�
�
	!�������������������
���	����
�	����'��
����
�
#�����

������
����!������������$�����
�	������	�����������

��	$�����
��

�$������� �

����
��)
��������+��������
���
�����#

'��$�#����� �

����
�.��
���	������	�������!�
�

Page 48



�
���������	�
��

���� 2�� �
�����
������

0-� �����4������������
9��0���������#

'������ �

����
��)
��������+��������
���
�������
�	���
��	����
#

'�#��������� �

����
��)	�����	�)
������
���$�,

����
����������������������
�
����	
������
���
�
���
�������������

�$���
���
����
������
���
�������$�%��
��/����
��
$����$���
���#�
��
���
��'��$������
���	�	���	�������	�
�����$������Q�"��
��
�����$��

	��
���	�����
�
�������
����������
���

����	���	�
���
��'��$�����
#�����
����
�����
���
���
�����
���
���!�
�

6-� 4�*����������

��A��������A�	������������������������%��������*�������
9��0��������%������ �

����
��)
��������+��������
���
�������
�	������
�������
��������	�
����������
�������
��������������
�����������	�
�
	�
�	�������
�%�<�

�
� ���	�%���

�$����$������������������>%������
��������
��
����
#�
����
������
�����
�		������#

'!��+���������	������
�	������
�#������
��������������
����������	������

���		���
������������
���

$
�����!�6 ���	���
�����������

�������
�(��

�� �

�
���$�����#

'�
��+�
��������

��#�
��

�����������

������
���������
�	���������'�����$�������$����������
�
�������!�

�� 8�����$���#�#����
��
������$�����
&�$����	��!�
�� 6��

���$�	�������$��
�����
��!�

�

Page 49



�
���������	�
��

���� 2�� �
�����
������

,�������:�+�;��������<�

������������
)
��������	������������������������/

��������
���������	���
�����
��	���
�!����
�
��������	�������������
���#�������
������

����
�
���
���
�
����

�$��������
%�
#���
%��

��

���
�
���
���
�
���
�����!��
�*�������
����	���������$�������	�������=���#�

�����	�������������������*�������
������
�������������	��������!���
#���
%����������������
����������
������������
�
��������������
���������
���
����$

����
���		������������

����
�%���
	��
������������
�������#��������
���������	���	�����%������#�����$�����$

���

��
��$����!���
�

�����������
�
��

���
�������
������

��������������
������
��!�

/-�����
���,���������������'�	��������!�,�'�"�
"������
�����������������
��$��	�'��1������		���B���������#�	���
�����
��+
��
��
<1B+�>������
�������
���������
��<������!>�
������������

�����������
�����'���������
�����%��
�������
�����	��������������
�������!���
#���
������
��
���������
�������
������*�������
���������

�$���
�����
��	���
����������

����������)
����!��
�

�"�4������

�������������������
���������������!4���"��
1B+������������
�����
�����
��
�	��
�������'��!��"�����$��������
�����
������	

��
��
����<�!$!���

�$������������

����
���

���

����#
����>���������������	

��
�
��
���$�<�����
������>!��"����������������	���
��
���������
�	��#�
��
���	
�������
��
��#�		��
�#���
��������
�	

'��

������������
�������������
�������
���������������
���
�
���
���
�
������
�
������
�!�����
������
�����1B+�������
�������
������������
�
#�#�
���
�������������������&2!���������������������*�������*������	���
���
������������	��������!�+���������������������
����

�����������
�%����

����
�	���	�����%����

�����	�����	��

����
��%��
�����������$����������
��������
����
��
���		����!�
�

;������/6�+�4���������������	���������

�*��	�����	��	()�
�������

�

��

��

��


�

���

���

���

����8� ����8� ����8� ����8� ����8	 ���	8
 ���
85 ���58�� ����8��

2���

�
��

�

�	�

"

��
�	

�

	�
��

��
	�
��

�

�	
��
�	�

��
��
��

��
�	
��
	(

)�

�

��
��
��

-.�����!
���? 0����(�������������(��
���
���% �*

�

Page 50



�
���������	�
��

���� 22� �
�����
������

�"�(���������������������!(#����"�
�
�������
���������
������������
������������������	���
�����
�����

�
���#��������
�
������		��	���&��
�������$��������		����������	��
	����������
�!������������
����
�
��
�	��	�������
�	���	������
�����
�	�*������������������
��
�	��������

���
�����
���������
��������������
��������	�����
�������
����������$���#�����
���	����������
������������
����

�����$��		����!�
�

���
����������

����
�������
������
��
��������������
�����
���	���$�������������

������
��������������������;@�4!���
�

;������/:�+�,
������������		���
��'�	�������������	���������

���������	
������
���� 3������
�		�����	��	()�
�������	.//4�11

�

���

���

���

���

���

���

	��


��

5��

���	8
 ���
85 ���58�� ����8��

2���

�
��

�

�	�

"

��
�	

�

	�
��

��
	�
��

�

�	
��
�	�

��
��
��

��
�	
��
	(

)�

�

��
��
��

�
�

-

'��
���������������� �

����
�����	�����
�
����
�
�����������

�
�����������
����
���%�����������	����
��������$�����

�������������
����
	���
��
������������������
�����	���	������
����������

�����!�

1-���������
�����!�2"������	���������
�9�����������
��	��������
������������,����	�����
���
����

�����#���������	��
������������	��$������#�����������
�����
������
���
���
���
�������
������	����$�����
�
����������
�
���������!��"���������
���
�����%������������9��������
�������������	����
�������$�������	��$���
���������� �����������������������	�����
���
�����!�
�

"��� �

����
�%����������
�
��������
���9���������#���:��<�4�#����	��$�������������
22�#����
���
��9>!���������		����
�������������
�������������
�	������
�
�
������������
����������$��9�����
�&QG��

���
��	���
��
����
�������������
�����
��������	������	��!��

Page 51



�
���������	�
��

���� 23� �
�����
������

�
;������/9�+��������
�������������������������	���������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
���
����������3����
������
�����
����#�������
���

��$%��������������
�
�������%�
����
����������$��������� �

��)��������)��
#�		�����
����)
����	!�������
�����
���
�$��
�����

���#�����������
��������	��	
#�
����������QG�
���!�����������������
�����*�����-�
�

;������/?�+��2�������������������D���
����������$���	��������$�15/5�
�

?
��	�����

���� )����� �
��	���
��
B������
����%����
�
��	���
��

)��
#�		� �3� �2A%���� ��!��
� �

�� 2�� �3A%2��� ��!3�
+
����� �

����
�� 3� �2�%:��� ��2!��
N�	��
��-������

��� :� ��4%;��� ���!��
-����� �

����
�� �� ���%���� ��3!A�
QG� � � �2!A�
+
�
��(�6���������9�+�
���		�����+������ �
�
���
�����(��������N�		������	����

�����
��Q����

�

����)�����1�����	�������
���������	
��	���
����������
$���
��
��

���$��		��9�������
�����
��	����$����������	��
�����������4�H�
�������!��� �

����
�*�����������	�
�
��������
����������
������
�A3!�H�������A�<��
��������������N�		������
�$�>�
�
���
���#����43!�H�������;�����4A!2H�������4!����$���
��	���
��
������
�����
���

������������

�
��$

���
��

	!���������
���������������9���
��������

��������
�����$
����
���$
���
�����������	������	���$����

�������
���
�����������
��9!��

.-�����������������
��*�����
�����'������������
�"� ,��
��������������������
"���������
����������
����
��&����������������	����	������	�������
�����
�!��?���	��
��
����������
���

����	��

��������������� �

����
���
��������
����

��%�#��������'��
�
#���
�$���������$�����	���	����������
���
�!������#

'�#��������������
�&$
��$�
�

����������
		����
������
��

��'�����$%����
	���$�$���
�	��
������%��
��������
�����)�������%����
���	���$�����

�����	�
�������$���		�����������!���
�

������#�)��	�����	���"��

����
��+������#�����#����P	���*��������8��
��
����������
������
	���	����������	��

	��

�'�����$����

����
������
��������7��	������$�!������
���		������
�
�����	�
���#�
��
���
�����������������
#�����
		
#���������������		��
����
���
�������������
�!�

8����  �������	�
,�����

���������/55$555�
����
������

155:� �2� 4!3�
1559� ;:� ����
155?� �:� 4!4�

1553� ��� 4!:�

15/5� :�� A!��

Page 52



�
���������	�
��

���� 2�� �
�����
������

�"� 4���
���4�������������

��*�������!44�"��
Q���'��
�����������������
������
��������:H�
��
�����	�������
������ �

����
�.��
	���	���
������������������B�$�
�!��������

������
��������������
	���������
�����
��$�
����	���������� ���	�(�
'���������������	�*�����������������%��
����������������
��?$555��������	�
����
����������������*�����������	��������-���	������$������������
��05�
����
��%��
����		������*�
���������������
�������$�?��������
������������
�*�������	�/�����������������%��
�����-���
�������
����	
#���
#������$

����������#��������������� �

����
��
��
�		����
���������$�
�
����	�
����$����������	��%������%�
���		�%��������
���������������
�
	�
!��-��#�		�������
�����
������������
#���
���������	����7��
��
*����������
���
���!�
�

;������/3�+�,��
������'�������������

,��
������'�����������������6

;�H

;�H

4�H

4�H

A�H

A�H

���H

R2
��
;@
�4

R3
��
;@
�4

R�
��
4@
�A

R�
��
4@
�A

R2
��
4@
�A

R3
��
4@
�A

R�
��
A@
��

R�
��
A@
��
�

R2
��
A@
��
�

R3
��
A@
��

R�
��
�@
��
�

R�
��
�@
��

R2
��
�@
��

R3
��
�@
��

R�
��
�@
��

����

B
��

��
��

�
��
�
�
�

�
���
�

������
��%�������%����		�	�
���
������@"������������
	�
�N����������
��

1���	��%�1���������B���		�����
��

�
�

�"� ������
���

����������*�������!�
�"&����*����������*���
��������
�����

�	���#��������������		
�����
���<��N>����������������$
�
���
���������
����	�
�����
�!�"������
��
��
����������	�������H�
���� ��		�����������������#
����$������
����
����
�����������
�	������	��
�$��
�	����������	�
������#
�������������$
�
���
�
����	
����
����	������
!���
���
������
��
���������

�������
�������	����������$�	���������������������������	��	�������
�

�������$��������N��������:������4%������������
���#��������#���������������

��
�;�H�
���		���
����	������
�!���
��*�����������%�

���*������
�*����	����
����������055�%����������������������F<�%����0�
�*�����*���������������
��	��������-��
�

-���
����

���	�����������$�����2
���
�

��
��$�
	��#������N����������
��D�������#�
��
���������������

	����
�4���
��$�����@���D���������'���

�����#�
	���
�
���
��2�
��/����
������� ��������
�������	�����A�H����������$��$

��!����������������

$
����%�

���
��$���N��
��		�$�
	������
������$��
���4����
�%��

'��	������
��$��������������
���
����A@��!��
�

�������%�*�����������������	�����������	��%��������������*��������	�������-�

Page 53



�
���������	�
��

���� 2:� �
�����
������

0-�������

����������������	��������
�"� �'��C��'����
�"N��
���������
����
���
�������
������

������
��������	������������������QG!�"��
�������������
�����
�������#������
�
����

������%���$���
����
���
��������������
�%�
������$����������

��	���!��
�

"������������������#
���%���
��$�������$��%����������7��
����������QG�

���

�������
����������

��
���

�����
��������		���

�$��.����
��� .�������7���!�
�

"�����A%����
��#�
����3���#����$�
����
���"N�����������N�		���#�����������AH�

������
���

�����4!������������$

��
���	�!�������������#����$�
����3��#�
����#�
�"N����$�
�������� �

����
�!������� �

����
����$�
����
��������
���		!��-���
�������
�
�#

'������
���
������
�$��������
������
�������$����

��!�
�

;������15�+� �������	���%��'��������������������������	��������$�1555+1553�

&
"���	
�	'35	��6	�����
���-	
()�
�������-	.///�.//7

�

��

��

��


�

���

���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���	 ���
 ���5

�
�

�"� �����
����
���
"��������

������
��
���

��� ��		���
���������������������
���		���
�#������

�
���
����������������%������������/

����
��#������
���
�������	����

�$����'��$�������
P������� *��
������
��!����������������

������
����
����
���������������+� ��		��
�
��������������������
��	����������������������
���������������
���	�������
�
���
�
��	�����
���������������
��	�������	���
�	���!�
�
"��������
�����$��
�����������		�������/

��� ��		���
���������������������		���
��$�����
	�������
!��)�	�����������$�����	�#�
���
�����������
����
��
���	��
�$�����
��
�������������
���������)�	�������������
��
��
������4��������A��

������$��
����
������;!���

Page 54



�
���������	�
��

���� 2;� �
�����
������

;������1/�+����������������

����������������	��������	�����	�������������������1550+15/5�

�

'��;��������<�

���������������

���
��������	�����	��������(�
"��

������
���		���������$

������#

'�#�����������	����

�����
���$����������
������		�������/

�'�		�
��������
�������������
��������	���J!!!�

��
#!�
�

��%�*��$��������������������������E���#
�������*������������������������*�������
%���������*���
������������������������������%������������������$��
��
�����������*�
��������������������������������������
�������*��������������
��������#�-�
�

G�		�
��
��������	������������
��#�		�����$������� �

����
������
������������
&
�
��������
���!��)
���������$�	��������
�7��
���������
���	�����$������#�		�$�������
�����������������
�'�����������������
���������!�
�

������������
���	
�	������	���	���������������������������������������
�
�����	
������
 !�����������
�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������
��*�����;����
�����
��������(�
�

�		�����
��
��������
����

�������
���
������������	�
��

����������������!�
+�
�����%���
���		�������������$������
���������������������������	�����

���$�

��
�����	����3����
�!�

����������������
/-�4��������*���
����������������������������������������
������
���

�
�����	������	�����������	
��	����	����

�����
���$����������#

'�
�	
��	����
��$������

���
���$�����
��	�
�

$�������
��
�����	������	�����
�������
�
�����������
���		�����
���
��������	�������������
��$�����@��@�2�������'��
���

�
������������
��
��

	��������������������������#����
$��$�'�		�
���������!�
�

1-�����������������������������	����������
��
���
������
���

�
�����	������	�����
�	��
��

��
��'�		�
��������
��������������
���
�����������������7����������	�
��

��!�
�

Page 55



�
���������	�
��

���� 24� �
�����
������

�����������������������	�'�	�������������������������������������
0
����+�
���$����������������������
��
�����&�3�
���	������	���+�
���		����������
�
��
���	����

�����
���$�����"������
����������������
� �

����
��+���
�)
������������
���
�������	�
�
	�+�
���$��,

������'���
���������

���

�
� �

����
��
����)��	���
��
���������������������

�� �

����
��
� �

����
��)��	�
�������O
��$���
�	����	����������

��
� �

����
���)����
�

�����������
,��)
��

����"��

����
�����'��D�1�
��������
?��
����/
�
��	��
������

��,
�������
�������
� �

����
������
��
��������������
��
������������
���
�������
�

�������
���#

'�

��#��%
����������
����� �
������� 
�	���� 
�� ���� ����� ���� ��	���� 
�� �
		��$���� #�
��� �
��
�����
�� ���
��'�
#	��$���#����$
�����	�����'�!�
�
��$�	��9�'�
��
1�
'�9

���
�	��
��9�
�
���
+�
���9
��
��
���	�)����
0�	�������
��$��
)	�
���
�#�		�
������6���
��$��
�
����8��������
+��'����������	���
���������
��
9��'��������
�
������������
0
���0��'�
���
���	��0��'�
��
��#�0
�����
1�
��G������
G����G��$�
�������?��)
����
0���?����
��
+���?�$
�
�
�	�1�)�
����

N�	�1�����$�
��
+
����1�		��
G�����1�����		��
)����
����1
����

���
B
�����*)
��

�
0���������
+�������B����
����
+����B
�#���
+���+������
0
�����+��
����
���	�+�����
N�	�+�����
1��
��+��		����
,��	�+�
�'�

��
,���+#���	��
1�
������$#�		�
1�����#�������
���
��'����	

��
8���		���
���		�
���
����
�N
��6�����

���
�	���-�����
0��'���-�	��
������

�
�

Page 56



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposal for A/OA Organisational Change 
Paper 

 
 
 
 
 

September 2010 
 
 

Rob Bale Clinical Director Adults of Working Age Oxfordshire 
Carol Bannister Clinical Director Older Adults Oxfordshire 
Eddie McLaughlin Director of Operations Oxfordshire 

 
 

Updated 24th September 2010 by Jackie Thomas, Locum Deputy 
Director of Operations (Oxfordshire) 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 57



 

 

Contents 
 
 
1 Executive Summary .................................................................................................... 4 

2 Background ................................................................................................................ 5 

3 Financial Drivers for Change ...................................................................................... 6 

4 Proposal for Service Change ...................................................................................... 6 

5 How the proposal will affect operation of clinical services and posts ........................... 8 

5.1 Premises Savings ................................................................................... 10 

5.2 Central Management Savings ................................................................ 12 

5.3 Community Team Savings ...................................................................... 13 

5.4 The Community Mental Health Team Model (CMHT) ............................. 15 

5.5 CMHT Core functions ............................................................................. 16 

5.6 Adult Community Model.......................................................................... 17 

5.6.1 CMHT Team Structures Adult County ............................................. 17 

5.6.1.1 South East Adult .......................................................................... 17 
5.6.1.2 South West Adult ......................................................................... 18 
5.6.1.3 North ............................................................................................ 18 
5.6.1.4 City ............................................................................................... 18 
5.6.1.5 EIS & AOR Staffing ...................................................................... 19 

5.6.2 Consultant input into the adult wards............................................... 19 

5.6.3 Adult Summary ................................................................................ 20 

5.7 Older Adult Community Model ................................................................ 20 

5.7.1 Older Adult Staffing by team ............................................................ 21 

5.7.2 Consultant input into the older adult wards ...................................... 21 

5.7.3 Older Adult Summary ...................................................................... 21 

6 Adult and Older Adult: numbers of posts affected ..................................................... 21 

Risks and Opportunities Impact Assessment ................................................................... 22 

6.1 Risks ....................................................................................................... 22 

6.2 SWOT Analysis ...................................................................................... 23 

7 Summary .................................................................................................................. 24 

7.1 Review of the New Model ........................ Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

Page 58



8 Process for organisational change ............................. Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

9 Staff Consultation Process ........................................ Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

10 Timetable of events ................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

Appendix 1: GP Practice Figures by Adult CMHT ...............Error! Bookmark not 
defined.2 

Appendix 2: GP practice figures by Older Adult CMHT .......Error! Bookmark not 
defined.2 

Appendix 3: Total Adult Staffing changes within the affected teams ............Error! 
Bookmark not defined.2 

Appendix 4: Total Older Adult Staffing changes within the affected teams ..Error! 
Bookmark not defined.2 

Appendix 5: Job descriptions for posts within the CMHT ....Error! Bookmark not 
defined.2 

CMHT Clinical Manager Job Description ........ Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

Senior CPN/PAM/Senior Practitioner Job Description .....Error! Bookmark not 
defined.2 

CPN/SW/OT - Registered Practitioner Job Description ...Error! Bookmark not 
defined.2 

Clinical Business and Performance Lead Job Description ..... Error! Bookmark 
not defined.2 

 ........................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

Appendix 6: Current Staffing Establishment by Community Team (correct in July 
2010) .................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

Appendix 7: In-patient Vacancies ....................... Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

Appendix 8: Community Vacancies .................... Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

 
Figure 1 Stepped Care Pathway Oxfordshire PCT ............................................... 15 

Figure 2 Integrated Pathways ............................................................................... 24 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



 

 

 

 

1 Executive Summary 
 

 

This paper has been prepared to inform staff of changes that the Oxfordshire Adult 

and Older Adult Directorate will make to its Community Services. The paper details 

these changes to management, community team structures and medical support to 

in-patient wards. 

 

The paper details the areas of change and the new structures to be implemented 

to achieve the proposed model of care. It identifies the savings that will be realised 

through these changes and also the risks and opportunities that these changes will 

present. The model described draws on over 40 years of clinical and research 

evidence for Community Mental Health provision. 

 

The objective for the service is the delivery of high quality effective patient centred 

mental health care to the adult population of Oxfordshire.  This will be achieved by 

basing service organisation on patient need and ensuring that the service model 

delivers: 

• Simplicity of patient pathways with the removal of artificial barriers 

• Accessibility 

• Continuity of care 

• Robust teams with the skills to meet the majority of patient needs from 

within the team, thus avoiding multiple onward referrals 

• Clarity of clinical responsibility 

• Clinical Leadership 

Page 60



• Optimal utilisation of resource 

• Management locally and corporately which support the delivery of optimal 

care and reduce the burden of bureaucracy 

 

2 Background 
 
The Adult and Older Adult Directorate employs approximately 1000 staff 

(725.5w.t.e.) and provides a wide range of services. The Directorate is integrated 

with Oxfordshire Social & Community Services through a Section 75 agreement. 

Services for adults include:  In-patient, community mental health services (CMHT), 

early intervention in psychosis (EIS) and assertive engagement (AOR). Services 

for older adults include: inpatient, specialist support to day care centres, 

community care, intermediate care (AES), liaison into general hospitals including a 

self harm service, memory clinics and in-reach into residential and nursing homes. 

Both care groups have crisis support and treatment provided from the same team 

(CRHT). 

 
 
The pressure on in-patient wards, with reduction in bed numbers and increased 

severity of conditions presented by patients, instructs that there needs to be more 

support to these teams. The current model of increasing numbers of community 

teams admitting into the ward causes relationships between the ward and 

community teams to be more fragmented, blurs responsibility and has high 

logistical problems for the wards to serve all these teams. 

 

This document proposes that we need to bridge the dilemma of maintaining 

continuity of care with developing a model of clinical leadership to the ward teams. 

By reinstating the CMHT as the core service to deliver treatments in the community 

this model reduces the numbers of teams interfacing with the wards and also 

creates a lead medical role to support and develop the ward team. 

 

Page 61



The current model has many small single consultant teams which makes it 

vulnerable to reductions in service due to sickness, vacancies and also less 

responsive to peaks in demand. This proposal allows the development of patch 

based CMHT’s that can be sub-divided into robust operational teams, maintaining 

clear leadership and accountability with more effective cross-cover and 

development of wider skill sets across the patch. 

3 Financial Drivers for Change 
 
 

• Over the next 4 years OBMH is required to deliver Cash Releasing 

Efficiency Savings and provide a small surplus against any borrowing for 

capital developments. The impact of this on services is the need to have 

increased efficiency and productivity.  

 

• In previous years the savings required by the Adult and Older Adult 

Directorate have been met by reductions in management costs and by 

reducing the in-patient bed stock. It is planned to further reduce 

management costs, however we are not in a position to further reduce our 

beds at this time. 

 

• The current income budget of the Directorate is approximately £42m. The 

savings to be achieved are £5.3 million over the next 4 years. This 

document sets out how this will be achieved by reducing management and 

staffing costs. 

 

4 Proposal for Service Change 
 
 

• The proposal is to reduce community costs by £3.4m, Central Management 

by £250k and over time to realise savings from reviewing the number of 

Page 62



community bases we have in partnership with Community Health 

Oxfordshire (CHO).  Any shortfall in savings is to be met by reductions in 

overheads and any other efficiency that can be realised over the 4 years. 

 

• From April 2011 OBMH will be merging with Community Health Oxfordshire. 

We will work together to ensure that we use our joint estate in the most 

efficient way. This may assist in realising further estate savings. 

 
• We will retain the Crisis and Home Treatment Team (CRHT), Bridge-

building, the Prison In-reach Team, the Assessment and Enablement Team 

(AES) and our contribution to the Single Point of Assessment Rehabilitation 

and Care service (SPARC). This recognises the specialist competencies 

contained in these services which are both relevant for the most vulnerable 

and needy service users and difficult to provide in a more generalist team. 

 

• We will restructure our Community Mental Health Teams (CMHT’s) to 

achieve the savings required. This restructuring will involve an overall 

reduction in clinical and administrative staff. With the level of vacancies 

within the Directorate the proposal is to reduce the number of budgeted 

posts wherever possible in the first year to allow for a longer period of 

consolidation of the new model rather than further large changes year on 

year. The changes will include merging the existing single modular teams 

into a smaller number of larger teams which retain a locality connection. 

These changes will afford the retention of a range of shared resources and 

capabilities within the community service. 

 

•  We will also be introducing “hot-desking” and reducing administrative costs 

through more services sharing the same premises and other initiatives to 

maximise the efficiency of the buildings we use. This is expected to achieve 

a minimum of £1m reduction in service costs over time. Most of these 

Page 63



savings will be related to a review of community bases and will be subject to 

a separate proposal and consultation. 

 

• We will reduce the number of administrative support staff by Adult and Older 

Adult Services operating out of the same premises and sharing the 

administrative resource. In addition we will be to implementing the new 

electronic notes system (RIO) and exploring other opportunities for 

technology to assist clinical staff to efficiently and directly enter and access 

case information. 

 

• Savings will have to be realised from increasing the clinical contact time of 

clinical staff and therefore managing with fewer posts. This will be achieved 

through increased clinics with resultant decrease in the number of home 

visits, excepting when these home visits are clinically indicated. It is 

important to emphasise that home visits will still be necessary for some 

service users who are unable to attend clinics for various reasons. Also by 

focussing on agreeing thresholds for access to services with primary care 

partners. It is expected that the number of clinical contacts will increase 

from an average of 700 contacts per annum to 840 per annum. In the future 

the currency for provision of care will be based on outcomes and not on 

numbers. 

 

5 How the proposal will affect operation of clinical services and 
posts 
 

At previous Adult and Older Adult Senior Staff Away Days we have discussed the 

variance between teams in thresholds for access to our community services. The 

proposal is to begin to use the framework of the Health of the Nation Payments by 

Results (HoNOSPbR) to cluster patient groups and identify the clinical inputs to 

meet their care needs. From this work we will identify the core elements and 

Page 64



services that the new community teams will provide. This work commenced at the 

Adult and Older Adult Management Away Days in April 2010 where clinical and 

management staff began to identify and agree the core clusters that our 

community services should work within. In delivering the new model of service we 

will be clearer about these thresholds for accessing our services and make sure 

these are more consistent across the county. 

 

We will review the operational practices of our community teams to minimise the 

amount of resource tied up within community premises.  This will include utilising 

capacity in bases fully, increasing the number of clinic contacts, planning visits to 

minimise non-patient contact time, use of technology to reduce the administrative 

support requirements. 

 

We are proposing that the new community teams will continue their existing remit 

of the care and treatment of those with functional conditions (Adults of Working 

Age) and functional and organic conditions (Older Adults). In addition the teams 

will carry the currently separate functions of Assertive Outreach, Early Intervention 

in Psychosis, as well as the general CMHT functions. 

 

For Older Adults the Day Service teams, which are managed within the CMHT’s, 

will be fully absorbed into the new community teams, with the expectation that the 

function of group work and support to day centres continues from within the CMHT. 

Memory Clinics will also remain a function of the new CMHT. 

 

To achieve the required savings we will have to work to a set of agreed principles 

which will allow and require more efficient and effective use of resources. This may 

involve some or all of: 

• more closely delineated packages of care for finite periods with regular 

formal assessment of changing needs,  

• greater role definition within teams,  

• more effective working with families, 

Page 65



• standardised and authoritative assessments to gate keep entry to the 

service using qualified staff 

• reduction in reliance upon routine follow-up care, and the review of policies 

dictating such practice 

• targeting of home visiting by teams for those where it is clinically indicated 

or who are unable to attend clinics, 

• reviewing all cases where there has been no contact with the care co-

ordinator or RC in the previous 3 months 

• routine use of audit to examine and change practice 

• promotion of clinical research and innovation 

 

. 

There are 725.5wte budgeted posts across the adult and Older Adult Directorate. 

The proposed changes will equate to a reduction of approximately 47wte budgeted 

posts (including management reductions) within the Directorate. This will be 

achieved through vacancy management and thus staff may need to move from 

their current localities. It is important, however, that this is done with the least 

amount of change and therefore for the patient as little impact as possible. Many of 

the current Ward vacancies are being managed by the use of NHS bank staff; 

therefore it expected that bank usage will reduce significantly with the 

implementation of the new model and that the majority of the reductions of posts 

will be made in the first year. 

 

5.1 Premises Savings 
 

Adult and Older adult services currently operate out of 12 community bases (in 

addition to the main hospital sites at the Warneford, Churchill, Littlemore and the 

Horton): 

Base Location Services 
Townlands Henley Adult and Older Adult 
Wykeham Park Thame Older Adult 
Charter House Thame Adult, CAMHS, SCAS 

Page 66



Mereland Road Didcot Adult 
Ridgeway Didcot Older Adult 
Abingdon Mental Health 
Centre 

Abingdon Adult and Older Adult, 
SCAS 

Nuffield Centre Witney Adult and Older Adult, 
SCAS 

Julier Centre Bicester Adult, SCAS, Prison In 
reach 

Elms Banbury Adult 
Fiennes Banbury Older Adult 
Rectory Centre Oxford Adult, SCAS, Vol Sector 
Manzil Way Oxford Older Adult, Complex 

Needs 
 

In addition to the above there are CAMHS bases in Abingdon, Witney and 

Banbury. We also have adult community staff based in 3 areas of the Warneford 

Hospital. 

 

CHO operate out of 9 community hospital bases, many situated in the same 

market towns as OBMH community bases. 

 

It is proposed to work towards a reduction in the number of bases, with co-location 

of CHO, adult, older adult, CAMHS and Specialist Adult services wherever 

practicable possible. A review of the bases will be undertaken and potentials for 

shared bases explored and this will be consulted on separately in the future. Over 

the next three years it is envisaged that this will produce a premises saving of 

between £1m - £1.8m.  

 

It is accepted that there may be some increase in staff travel costs, to allow for this 

non-pay budgets have been left at the same levels prior to the proposed decrease 

in staffing, which gives added headroom for this cost pressure. 

 

Summary: 

At the April 2010 Adult and Older Adult Senior Staff Away Days there was 

discussion about the possibilities of base reductions, particularly following the 

Page 67



joining of OBMH and CHO in April 2011. Therefore it is planned to intensively 

review the all community bases to assess the potential to share single bases 

where possible. 

 

5.2 Central Management Savings 
 

• In excess of a £250k reduction in central management costs will be 

achieved.  

Central Management   
Staff Type Band WTE Total Cost - standard point 

       

Nurse Consultant 8b 2.00 £130,000 

PDL  8a 0.50 £24,551 

OT  8a 0.51 £27,087 

OT  7 0.40 £17,174 

Admin  4 1.00 £25,565 

Total Pay   4.41 £224,377 

Non-Pay   £30,000 

 

 

The nurse consultant roles have been vacant for 6 months with one nurse 

consultant successfully taking up the post of Deputy Director of Nursing and the 

other taking a leading role in the implementation of the productive ward. Two of the 

service managers are also lead nurses and therefore will maintain nursing 

leadership across the directorate. In addition the directorate now has two modern 

matrons in post for one year whilst the ward managers undergo a training 

programme with the aim of each ward having their own modern matron. 

 

The two OT posts sit within the management cost centre and it is believed that the 

functions of the posts could be undertaken within the band 7 posts across the 

directorate therefore the band 7 posts become either practice development nurses, 

Page 68



Senior Practitioners or OT lead posts. This will ensure equity across the service 

and that all professions have leadership at this level. 

 

5.3 Community Team Savings 
 

• It is proposed to restructure community services from the existing model of 

the small modular team with access to separate modernisation teams, to 

larger community teams with the skills to meet the need of service users. 

The teams will be expected to work to a team model of service provision. 

 

In year one the Early Intervention Service will reduce to one band 7, 8 Care 

Coordinators and 1 band 5 carer support worker. The management of the Early 

Intervention team will sit with the city west CMHT manager and the consultant 

input will be from the service user’s sector consultant.    

 

In year one the city Assertive Outreach Team will reduce to one band 7, 5 Care 

Coordinators and 4 Support, Time and Recovery (STR). The management of 

the team will sit with the city east CMHT manager and the consultant input will 

be from the appropriate city consultant for the service user. 

 

Both, the city Assertive Outreach Team and the Early Intervention Team would  

be reviewed after one year to look at the further integration of the functions into 

the CMHT’s. 

 

• Each team across adults and older adults will have a care coordinator who 

takes a lead role supporting carers 

 

• For Adult and Older Adult Services this will be reconfiguring the existing 

small geographically scattered teams to larger Community Mental Health 

Teams (CMHT). This will achieve a saving on pay costs of approx £2m. 

 

Page 69



• The CMHT will have a primary focus on the treatment of organic and 

functional conditions with patterns of both acute mental health symptoms 

and more enduring and severe mental illness, including the capacity to 

intervene early in psychosis and to work with difficult to engage patients.  

 
• There will be dedicated time of 1wte for each of the 4 adult admission 

wards. There will be 0.5wte dedicated time for each of the 3 older adult 

admission wards. The Intensive Care Unit will continue to have 0.7wte 

Consultant time. 

 

• We are aware that there is a PCT development group that is defining what a 

comprehensive memory service would be composed of. It is anticipated that 

a request will be made for funding of this new service. The dementia 

strategy is clear that the diagnostic service for dementia and assessment of 

challenging behaviour remains a specialist secondary care function.  The 

older adult CMHTs would continue to undertake the functions of memory 

clinics which will continue to develop in conjunction with the implementation 

of the Dementia Strategy. 

 

• Crisis Resolution and Home Treatment (CRHT) service will be maintained 

as at present. The within hours urgent response service will be carried out 

predominately by the CMHT. During afternoon hours there will be shared 

working between the CMHT and the CRHT teams. Out of hours the CRHT 

will provide an urgent response and home treatment based service, with 

increased home visits throughout the night-time period. We will continue to 

offer the 7 Day Crisis Day Centre in Oxford and the 5 Day Elms Day Centre 

in Banbury. 

 
• The proposed model is consistent with Oxfordshire PCT’s Stepped Care 

Pathway, with the Mental Health Community Service concentrating on 

specialist diagnostics, acute crisis and enduring mental health problems. 

 

Page 70



 

Ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n

Whole Population
Emotional resilience

Primary Care
Mild to Moderate problems

Community
Enduring problems

Acute/
Crisis

Severe problems
So

ci
al

 In
cl

us
io

n

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t

PCT proposed Stepped Care Pathway

 
Figure 1 Stepped Care Pathway Oxfordshire PCT 

  
 

• In terms of reviewing the proposed models effectiveness, we will be 

examining data re-activity and morbidity which will become available as we 

continue to collect HoNOS data and relate it to HoNOSPbR 

 
 
 
 

5.4 The Community Mental Health Team Model (CMHT) 
 
The CMHT will maintain the integrity of multi-disciplinary team working and as such 

will comprise medical, nursing, social work and occupational therapy as core 

professions. At present there are psychology staff who are managed as part of the 

specialist adult directorate, but they remain core members of the community teams 

which they are co-located with. 

 

The CMHT will have a clinical management structure with a Clinical Team 

Manager and two senior clinical staff from either: Nursing, Social Work or 

Page 71



Occupational Therapy professions. These staff, with the consultant psychiatrists 

will form the senior clinical leadership group for each CMHT. In addition the 

Specialist Directorate Senior Psychology staff who are currently based with the 

CMHT’s will be invited to be part of this senior clinical leadership group. Staff will 

be grouped to maintain links with primary care teams and to ensure that team 

functioning is optimised. 

 
To enable the CMHT’s to function effectively they will require access to clinical 

space in each of the main market towns across Oxfordshire. The teams will also 

need good access to clinical information, currently all community staff are using 

blackberry devices and we are exploring new technologies for mobile working. 

 

5.5 CMHT Core functions 
 

The CMHT will have the core functions of providing specialist mental health care 

assessment and treatment. The teams will a have clear operational policy which 

will detail: the thresholds for access to the service, the services offered, the model 

of care, the roles and responsibilities of team members and how the patient 

pathway/ journey is expected to be clinically managed. The policy will be 

developed by the teams and clinicians during the implementation phase of the 

changes. 

 

The fundamental requirement of the CMHT is to provide individualised care based 

on diagnosis and patient need. The model of care must support continuity and be 

clear about the services being offered to the patient. 

 

The larger teams will allow for greater sharing of skills. Having a wider skill mix of 

staff will allow for tasks to be carried out by those at the appropriate skill level, 

such as STR workers working on practical tasks with patients.  

 

Page 72



The CMHT operational policy must include how the team will manage the mental 
health needs in their patch, be clear about who is responsible for delivery of care 
and that the team is operating within the best evidence-based practice framework. 
 
5.6 Adult Community Model 
 
The proposal is to create larger teams that meet the functions of the CMHT, AOR 
and EIS with an initial move to a smaller EIS and AOR. 
 
Across the Adult Services (within Adult and Older Adult Directorate) there are 490 
wte staff posts. The proposed model for community services is a reduction of 
approximately 26wte posts.  
 
Each new Community Mental Health Team (CMHT) will have a Clinical Manager 
and two Senior Practitioner/ Senior CPN posts. There will also be an increase in 
unregistered staff to provide more practical support to patients, freeing up qualified 
staff to undertake therapeutic interventions. All adult CMHT teams will have 3wte 
Consultant Psychiatrists with 1wte providing the senior medical input for inpatients 
from the teams catchment area. The operational model for the teams will ensure 
that key principles of effective patient centred care are delivered.   
 
The proposal is to realign from the existing 17 modular CMHT’s (and the 
countywide Early Intervention team as well as the Assertive Outreach teams) to 
have 5 locality focused teams (full GP practice figures shown in Appendix 1): 
 

• North (Banbury and Bicester: Adult 18-64 population 104,056) 
• City (Oxford West and Kidlington: Adult 18-64 population 72,769) 
• City (Oxford East: Adult population 77,440) 
• South East (Wallingford, Thame, Henley, Didcot, Wantage and Grove: Adult 

population 116,914*) 
• South West (Abingdon, Witney and Faringdon: Adult population 100,002) 
• Thame data contains all population not only those under Oxfordshire PCT 

 
5.6.1 CMHT Team Structures Adult County 
 
5.6.1.1 South East Adult 

Didcot, Thame and Henley  
Position Number of Posts (wte) 
Consultants 3 

Speciality Doctors 1 

Team Manager  1 

Senior Practitioner/PDL 2 
Band 6  12 

Page 73



Band 5 1 
Band 4 MHP 0 

Band 3 STR 3 
A&C Band 6  
A&C  Band 5 1.5 

A&C Band 4 
5 

 
5.6.1.2 South West Adult 

Witney, Abingdon and Faringdon  
Position Number of Posts (wte) 
Consultants 3 

Speciality Doctors 1 

Team Manager  1 

Senior Practitioner/PDL 
2 

Band 6  12 

Band 5 1 
Band 4 MHP 0 
Band 3 STR 3 
A&C Band 6  
A&C  Band 5 1.5 

A&C Band 4 5 

5.6.1.3 North 
Adults North  

Position Number of Posts (wte) 
Consultants 3 

Speciality Doctors 1 

Team Manager  1 

Senior Practitioner/PDL 2 

Band 6  12 (12 plus 1 Liaison) 

Band 5 1 

Band 3 STR 3 

A&C  Band 5 1.5 
A&C Band 4 5 

 
 
5.6.1.4 City 

City Teams  - East and West  

Page 74



  

Position Number of Posts (wte) 

Consultant 6 

Speciality Doctor 2 

Team Manager  2 

Senior Practitioner/PDL 4 

Band 6  22 

Band 5 2 
Band 3 STR 6 
A&C  Band 5 1.5 

A&C Band 4 10 

 
 
*Care Co-ordinator is the central function in planning the delivery of service and is 
a post that is usually filled by a professional from either: Nursing, Social Work or 
Occupational Therapy. The carers support worker will be a care coordinator with a 
lead role in carers support. 
**STR Workers will be Band 4 if undertaking MHP training. 
 
 
 
5.6.1.5 EIS & AOR Staffing 

 Early Intervention Team Assertive Outreach Team 

Position   
Senior Practitioner/PDL 1 1 
Band 6  8 5 

Band 5 1  
Band 3 STR  4 
 
 
 
5.6.2 Consultant input into the adult wards 
 
The Adult services have five in-patient units, four of which are acute admission 
(20-21 beds) and one is the psychiatric intensive care unit (PICU) which has 15 
beds and serves Oxfordshire, Buckinghamshire and Milton Keynes. Two of the four 
acute admission units are for male patients and two are for female patients. The 
city sector bed usage is approximately two of the wards (42 beds), with the rest of 
the county bed usage being two wards. 
 
The consultant and nursing groups within adults have discussed the options for 
consultant time on the wards and have agreed the following proposal: 

Page 75



 
The City Wards (two wards) each will have the equivalent of a whole time 
consultant made up from two post holders working half-time on each of the two 
wards. This means each of the city wards will have two consultants working into it. 
 
In the county there are three CMHT’s each of which will provide dedicated in-
patient consultant cover. This will be met by two consultants in each CMHT 
providing 3-4 programmed activities (PA’s) into a ward. This means each of the 
county wards will have three consultants working into it. 
 
The PICU has in place a dedicated consultant working 0.7wte in the Ward. 
 
There will be a recorded timetable of consultant time into the wards and a clear 
expectation of cross-cover being in place to cover any absences. Three months 
after implementation there will be a review of the effectiveness of these 
arrangements. 
 
5.6.3 Adult Summary 
 
This proposal delivers some of the required savings. The core function of the 
CMHT is to provide care, treatment and recovery to patients with significant need 
and with severe and enduring mental illness, from early intervention in psychosis, 
severe depression, bipolar conditions, schizophrenia and resistant OCD. 
 
In addition, the proposal includes dedicated consultant time (equivalent to 1 wte 
per ward) for each of the 4 admission wards. 
 
5.7 Older Adult Community Model 

 
 
Older Adults will move from the current four locality model to a three locality team 
model. The proposed model includes: 
 
2.8 wte Consultant Psychiatrists in the South 
2.6wte Consultant Psychiatrists in the City 
2.4 wte Consultant Psychiatrists in the North 
 
Each area has 0.5wte Consultants (within the stated wte above) per in-patient unit.  
 
There are 235.5wte budgeted posts across the Older Adult part of the Directorate.  
The proposed model represents a reduction of approximately 11wte staff from 
those currently in post. There are vacant posts across the Older Adult care group. 
A detailed breakdown of the existing and proposed posts is shown in Appendix 4. 
This proposal represents £984k reduction in pay and non-pay.  
 

Page 76



The structure of each of the proposed Community Mental Health Team (CMHT) 
locality teams are shown in the following table: 
5.7.1 Older Adult Staffing by team 

North, City, South  

Position Posts Per Team (wte) 
Consultants 2.4 North, 2.6 City, 2.8 South 

Team Manager  1 
Senior Practitioner/PDL 2 
Band 6  12 

Band 5 1 
Band 4 MHP  
Band 3 STR 3 

A&C  Band 5 1.5 

A&C Band 4 3 

 
*Care Co-ordinator is the central function in planning the delivery of service and is 
a post that is usually filled by a professional from either: Nursing, Social Work or 
Occupational Therapy. The carers support worker will be a care coordinator with a 
lead role in carers support 
**Band 4 if undertaking MHP training 
 
5.7.2 Consultant input into the older adult wards 
 
The Older Adult consultant and nursing groups have agreed that each of the three 
wards will have 0.5 wte dedicated consultant input. The expectation is that cross 
cover will be in place to ensure each ward has cover throughout the year. 
 
 

5.7.3 Older Adult Summary 
 
This proposal delivers some of the required savings. The AES service will continue 
to operate countywide and this year will include mental health intermediate care 
beds. As with the adult CMHT’s, the core functions are to provide care, treatment 
and recovery to patients with severe and enduring mental illness, in the context of 
presentations of functional or organic conditions. The teams will continue to 
provide groupwork, inreach to nursing homes and memory clinics. Each of the 
three in-patient wards will have 0.5wte of dedicated consultant time. 
 
6 Adult and Older Adult: numbers of posts affected  
 

• This represents a net reduction of 47.04wte of community budgeted posts 
within the Directorate  

• This reduces the number of posts across the Directorate, from 725.5wte to 
678.46wte  

Page 77



• Vacancies are currently being held in preparation for the proposed changes, 
with essential cover being provided through the use of NHS Bank staff 

• The number of posts being reduced outnumbers the posts vacant, one to 
ones will provide an opportunity to discuss all options and ensure suitable 
alternative employment is considered, if appropriate  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Risks and Opportunities Impact Assessment 
6.1 Risks 
 

RISK IMPACTS ACTIONS TO REDUCE RISK 
Reduction in Quality of 
service through staff 
changes 

Patient and carer dissatisfaction 
with the service. Commissioners 
dissatisfied and not supporting 
the new service model. 

Patient satisfaction measures to be 
introduced to review how the new 
service is being perceived. 
Also this model is consistent with the 
approach in the Buckinghamshire arm 
of OBMH and there are higher levels of 
patient satisfaction with services there 
and no increase in patient non 
attendance rates for their centralised 
clinic model. 
 

Delay in approval leading 
to delay in 
implementation 

Financial savings target not met. 
Staff feeling unsettled and 
uncertain of their future. 

Vacancies being held to offset delays. 
Staff made aware of the direction of 
service change through regular 
directorate away days. 
 

Potential negative impact 
on staff from them 
perceiving an increase in 
their workload 

Poorer staff retention and 
reduction in staff satisfaction with 
their role. 

Increase in productivity to be realised 
through better use of central clinic 
model reducing time spent on travelling. 
Work with commissioners to agree a 
better quality currency based on clinical 
outcomes rather than numbers of 
patients seen – this should be realised 
through HoNOSPbR patient clustering. 
 

Reorganisation leads to 
reduction in service 
capacity due to 
expected productivity 

Poorer service response, patients 
waiting for care.  
Referrers dissatisfied with the 
service. 

Staff will be engaged in delivering the 
changes to ensure that they assist in 
minimising any reduction in capacity. 
Productivity gain is set at a realistic 

Page 78



gains not being met, to 
compensate for the 
reduction in personnel 

Commissioners dissatisfied with 
the service. 

level of increasing contacts to 4.5 per 
wte per day over a 41 week year. 

Unable to release savings 
in premises due to lease 
terms or suitable 
alternative clinical space 

Risk of up to £1m of the savings 
to be achieved. 

Proposal assumes that these savings 
can be realised with CHO over a three 
year period to ensure delivery. 

Central Management 
Savings not realised 

£250k identified for savings, posts 
already identified and savings 
ready to be delivered. 

Posts already identified and it is likely 
more than £250k will be achieved. 

Stakeholder disquiet 
about changes in 
thresholds for access to 
services 
 

Primary care and services such 
as IAPT will be expected to treat 
more cases rather than routinely 
refer to specialist secondary care. 
Patients are likely to be 
discharged more quickly from 
secondary care services. 

Clear criteria for access to services 
published. 
Service specifications agreed with 
commissioners. 

 
 

6.2 SWOT Analysis 
 

Strengths Weaknesses 
Larger teams are more robust. 
 
Better cross cover from having larger teams 
 
Centralised clinics allow more patients to be 
seen than seeing everyone at home with 
the additional travelling time for clinicians 
from d.v.’s. 
 
The CMHT structure allows for greater 
contribution from all professional groups 
into the clinical management of the team. 
 
Model is already tested as to its 
effectiveness in that it mirrors the approach 
in OBMH A&OA Buckinghamshire services. 
 
 

Teams that are too large may be difficult to 
manage. 
 
 
Patients will be expected to travel to 
appointments when they are able to do so. 
 
 
Possible reduction in the quality of service with 
less clinical resource available. 
 
Complexity of the community bases in terms of 
leases, ownership and suitable replacements 
may delay some of the implementation of this 
element of change. 
 
There may be some issues with having access to 
good clinic space in all areas of the county. 
 

Opportunities Threats 
More support for multidisciplinary working 
within larger CMHT’s. 
 
Changes mean that teams will have to 
review the thresholds for access to the 
teams which gives the opportunity to agree 
common criteria for access across the 
teams than is currently the case. 
 

 
Decreased patient satisfaction leading to poorer 
patient survey returns and possible patient 
withdrawal from care. 

Page 79



To increase the productivity of community 
staff. 
 
To work with colleagues in CHO to realise 
more shared working and operating out of 
each others community bases. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

7 Summary 
 
The Adult and Older Adult Community Services will be delivered from fewer, 
larger CMHT’s. The CMHT’s will form the core element of the specialist 
mental health care pathway. To work effectively the CMHT’s will work 
across the community and acute care pathway, including provision of 
specialist support and advice to the integrated CHO/OBMH teams (figure 2 
below). 

 
Figure 2 Integrated Pathways 

 
Our services will work more closely with Community Health partners. Bed 
management will use the Acute and Older Adults Care Pathways model of 
practice which will afford better bed gate-keeping. 
Care inputs and outputs will be based on Patient Clusters and patient and 
carers will contribute to assessing the effectiveness of services will better 
developed clinical outcome measures. 

Page 80



 

Update to Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

3rd July 2012  

 

 

1. Introduction 

 

This paper has been written to give an update of the changes made to 

Community Mental Health Teams in January 2011 and the impacts this had 

had for Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust, for service users and their 

carers and for the staff who work in the teams 

 

2. Background 

 

From the original consultation document, September 2010, the objective of 

the Community Mental Health Service is to delivery high quality patient 

centred mental health care to the adult population of Oxfordshire.   

 

The original model in 2010 was provided by small single consultant teams 

which were vulnerable to reductions in service due to sickness, vacancies and 

also less responsive to high levels of referral. The new service proposal 

allowed for the development of larger Community Mental Health Team’s 

maintaining clear leadership and accountability. This also allowed for more 

effective cross-cover and the development of wider skill sets across each of 

the teams. 

 

3. Progress to date 

 

Across Oxfordshire there are now 5 Adult CMHTs (previously 11 small teams) 

and 3 Older Adult CMHTs (previously 9 teams). All of the new CMHTs have a 

clear skill mix with a multidisciplinary team that includes consultants, other 

medical staff, community psychiatric nurses, social workers, occupational 

therapists and support workers.  

 

 

Page 81



 

 

Outcome for Service Users and carers  

 

Although, initially, there was some changes in care team for some service 

users and their carers as the localities moved to larger teams, this was kept to 

a minimum by ensuring that one professional member of the service users’ 

care team would remain in place during the changes.  

 

The main geographical area where this was an issue was Wantage and 

Grove. The Wantage and Grove service users moved from a team in the 

South West to a team in the South East. A staff grade doctor was used to 

support the handover of service users and to ensure this was a smooth 

transition from one team to another. All changes were undertaken through the 

care programme approach with service users having care plans and risk 

assessments in place and a review of their care prior to transfer.  

 

All service users and carers are now with the appropriate team and 

appropriate levels of service are now being provided.  

 

Outcome for Staff  

 

The smaller teams have now developed into larger Community Mental Health 

Teams although for some teams the issue of co-location remains a challenge. 

 

Consultants are working towards inpatient ward provision, with the North and 

City Teams providing one consultant to work on the wards from the CMHT, 

the other teams are working towards this. 

 

Hot desking has worked in some teams but others are finding it difficult. Team 

managers are looking at the issues in the teams and finding solutions to 

ensure staff are able to work well. 

 

 

 

Page 82



 

4. Metrics 

 

Before the service changes there were between 6,000 – 7,000 cases open to 

the Adult and Older Adult Mental Health services. Since the change the 

caseload remains over 6,000 therefore there has not been a significant 

change. There were a number of service users on caseloads who had not had 

any contact with Mental Health services for 6 months and longer. These 

service users were seen and reviewed, and if appropriate discharged back to 

the GP.  

 

Contact activity up to August 2010 was approx. 23,000 face to face contacts a 

year and the contact level this year has increased slightly to approx. 24,000. 

 

Overall we reduced the Community staffing by 49 members of staff; mainly 

administration and management. We developed larger community mental 

health teams and encouraged the use of, both, seeing service users at home 

as well as a clinic model of outpatients. The utilisation of clinics means that 

the amount of time lost to travel is minimised and more time is being spent in 

providing interventions to service users. 

 

5. Next Steps 

 

To undertake a review of the Early Intervention Service and Assertive 

Outreach Service to analyse the impact of the changes on these services 

 

To develop further the role of inpatient consultants and leadership on the 

wards 

 

To undertake the 12Q survey to gain feedback from staff re satisfaction 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\1\6\AI00006619\$gvngkd3o.docx 

 
 

Health Scrutiny Committee 
 

Report on Early Intervention Service and Interfaces with Health 
 
 Background 
 

1. This paper has been prepared for the Health Scrutiny Committee so as to 
provide members with a brief introduction to the work of the redesigned early 
intervention service and to draw particular attention to the health-based 
aspects of the service. 

 
2. Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) and partner agencies want all children and 

young people to have the best start in life and receive the on going support 
that they and their families need to fulfil their potential. 

 
3. Services for all children and young people (such as schools, colleges early 

years settings, primary care, health visiting) have a key role in promoting well 
being and preventing problems.  For the majority of children and young 
people high quality universal services will enable them to achieve good 
outcomes and reach their full potential. 

 
4. However from time to time some children will become “vulnerable”.  They may 

have difficulty making a transition from primary to secondary school, their 
development may be delayed, they may break the law or have emotional 
difficulties. Others are vulnerable because of their own development, family 
circumstances or environmental factors. 

 
Issues  
 

5. The vision in Oxfordshire was to change the way services are delivered 
across all agencies so that universal targeted and specialist services can work 
in a more integrated way to identify and work with vulnerable children and 
their families at an earlier stage and provide services in a way that children 
young people and families have said will make a difference to them.  

 
6. The proposals included the integration and redesign of existing services to 

offer one early intervention and prevention service, that is capable of working 
locally with vulnerable children young people and families with additional or 
complex needs.  

 
7. All partner agencies were actively involved in the shaping of the new service  

through the Early Intervention Steering Group. This group had and continues 
to have strategic responsibility for driving the implementation of the Early 
Intervention Service forward and will form the governance partnership 
responsible for the oversight of the new service reporting to the Children’s 
Trust and local Safeguarding Board as well as to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 85



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\1\6\AI00006619\$gvngkd3o.docx 

 
8. Health partners were and continue to be actively involved in the design and 

implementation of the service.  There was senior representation from Public 
Health, Health Commissioning and Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust at 
strategic level through their representation on Early Intervention steering 
group.  At operational level Health and County Council  managers and 
practitioners are working together  to ensure that service delivery for children 
young people and their families across Health and the Early Intervention 
Service is as seamless and integrated as possible.   

 
9. The Early Intervention Service “went live” on 1 September 2011.  The service 

operates from the 44 Childrens Centres and from seven Early Intervention 
hub sites.  There are three Early Intervention managers North, Central and 
South responsible for strategic delivery of the service and each hub is 
managed by an Early Intervention hub manager.   

 
10. The service is targeted at vulnerable children young people and families with 

additional and or complex needs which cannot be met by existing resources in 
the locality. 

 
11. The range of services and interventions that the Early Intervention Service 

can deliver with partner agencies for vulnerable children, young people and 
their families includes: 

 
Support to professionals 

 
• Consultation and advice to professionals children young people 

and families through a dedicated helpline and drop in sessions  
• Contributing  to and supporting integrated working processes 

through the provision of advice training  and support  to 
undertake Common Assessment Framework and utilise  Team 
Around the Child / family processes    

• Support to lead professionals through provision of advice and  
training 

• To assist in work with other professionals and community groups 
to ensure that plans and interventions are complementary and 
families and children access appropriate services 

 
Support to children young people and families 

 
Diverse and flexible support to children young people and families 
covering wide- ranging issues which can impact upon family life. This 
may include: 

 
• Direct work with children, young people and their families in their 

home and/or alternative community setting using evidence 
based interventions e.g. solution focused  cognitive behavioural 
Webster Stratton approaches  

• Group work 

Page 86



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\1\6\AI00006619\$gvngkd3o.docx 

• Open access and targeted sessions in both the hubs and the 
satellites for young people to respond to the needs of the area 

• Community outreach work  which responds to the needs of the 
area  

• Acting  as lead professional where appropriate  for some 
children, young people and their families 

• Delivery in conjunction with children centres and partners of 
evidence based parenting programmes  

• Diversion activities and assessments to prevent young people 
entering the youth justice system 

• Restorative practice which focuses on the needs of victims and 
offenders offering support to the victims of crime and 
encouraging offenders to take responsibilities for their actions. 

• Provision of professional counselling 
• Provision of mentoring and coaching 
• Access to employment, education and training opportunities 

 
12. This range of evidenced based early interventions will help to improve 

outcomes in relation to: 
 

• Persistent absence 
• Exclusions from school 
• Number of young people not in employment, education or 

training 
• Numbers of young people offending including first time entrants 

to the criminal justice system 
• Teenage pregnancy rates 
• Levels of children and young people admitted to hospital for 

non-accidental injuries including self-harm 
• Improving foundation stage profile results for vulnerable and 

disadvantaged groups 
• Inappropriate caring responsibilities 
• Improving attendance and attainment of children looked after 

 
13. There are seven Early Intervention delivery themes that have been identified 

to ensure clear responsibility for strategy, performance and delivery in relation 
to these key areas of work. Each Hub Service Manager together with an Early 
Intervention Manager has a lead responsibility for one of the delivery themes 

 
• Early years development and parenting   
• Health & Well being  
• Engagement in education, employment and training  
• Youth and youth justice and anti-social behaviour   
• Community development  
• Workforce development   
• Integrated processes   

 
14. The role of the hub manager and EIS manager is to ensure the strategic 

direction of this area of work across the Early Intervention Service by 

Page 87



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\1\6\AI00006619\$gvngkd3o.docx 

 
• Taking a lead on the relevant Key Performance Indicators for 

the directorate in relation to the delivery theme 
• Ensuring delivery of the key theme is co-ordinated consistently 

across the county, to a high quality and responsive to local need  
 

15. Themes included within Health and Well being delivery are:   
 

• Anti bullying 
• Substance misuse 
• Sexual health/teenage pregnancy 
• Disabilities 
• Mental health   

 
16. To support the monitoring of performance around these issues a set of Early 

Intervention performance indicators are in place whereby regular reporting of 
the indicators helps Early Intervention staff and  partners, agree, review and 
plan future service delivery  and direction in a meaningful way. 

 
17. The service has been operational since September 2011. There is on-going 

support and joint work with Health colleagues and much has been achieved in 
a short time span which builds on the good partnership working that was 
already in place including good partnership practice between Childrens 
Centres and Health.  This is helping to ensure that Health and Early 
Intervention services are working well together to achieve better outcomes for 
children. 

 
18. Care pathways have been agreed for children young people and their families 

so that where Health or Early Intervention staff identify needs for children/ 
families to access services from Health or Early Intervention this can be done 
seamlessly. 
 

19. It is obviously early days and now that the service is up and running there is 
still work to do to strengthen and modify these pathways in the light of 
practice. To take this forward a day is being organised in March 2012  for 
Health and Children Young People and Family practitioners to test these 
pathways identify where there is good practice learn from this and modify and 
change as necessary. 
 

20. A draft action plan has been drawn up around the themes within the health 
and well being delivery strand (described above).  This plan identifies where 
there is good practice but also where there are issues that need to be 
addressed and an action plan to address these issues.  
 

21. The implementation of the new service has also led to some new and 
innovative work across Health and Early Intervention Service.  An example 
includes a nurse practitioner employed within the Early Intervention Service. 
 

22. The service is responsible for diverting young people away from the criminal 
justice system.  Many of these young people do have mental health needs 

Page 88



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\1\6\AI00006619\$gvngkd3o.docx 

which in the past have not always been identified at an early stage which has 
sometimes meant that young people’s mental health issues have not been 
addressed as part of an integrated support plan to help then young person. 
 

23. Together with Health colleagues a successful bid was made for diversion 
pathfinder funding.  Through this funding the service is now able to employ a 
mental health nurse whose role is to screen young people who are being 
diverted for Mental Health issues and do appropriate checks to see what 
services have already been involved.  The nurse can also access and broker 
services for Diversion clients as required and work directly with young people. 

 
Conclusion 
 

24. As stated it is very early days for this new service.  There is however a strong 
commitment across all agencies in Oxfordshire to ensure that we are 
providing more holistic integrated support for families.  Health Services and 
the County Council are committed to building on the good work that is in place 
and continuing to work together at strategic and operational level to ensure 
that we are jointly delivering services that will improve outcomes for children 
young people and families.  This will be monitored through performance 
management frameworks and goverance arrangements ensuring that where 
there are challenges, gaps in service delivery mechanisms are in place to 
address these issues. 
 
 
 
 

Maria Godfrey 
 

Early Intervention Manager (North) 
 

January 2012 

Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention within the NHS in Oxfordshire

1. Background 

Overall NHS spending will increase by 0.4% in real terms to 2015. However, the government are 
also seeking £20bn in efficiency and productivity savings by 2014. Despite a 2.8% increase in 
funding for the NHS in Oxfordshire for 2012-13, there are more financial pressures than ever 
because:

  the population of Oxfordshire is growing, and more people are living on into old age; 
  advances in technology mean that new (and generally more costly) medicines and 

treatments are becoming available all the time;
  patients and the public have higher expectations of care and treatment by the NHS; 
  the costs of items such as medicines, food and petrol are increasing – inflation impacts on 

hospitals and other health care providers, as it does on all of us. 

The impact of the above factors is that the NHS in Oxfordshire has to find efficiency savings of 
£100m over the next three years in order to continue to provide the current level of health services 
an enable investment in our key priorities. 

2. Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention 

This difficult financial situation affects health care services across England, not just Oxfordshire, 
and the Department of Health has initiated a programme of work called Quality, Innovation, 
Productivity and Prevention (QIPP).  This approach looks at how the NHS can protect and promote 
quality while releasing savings across health systems. It is the responsibility of all NHS health care 
providers in Oxfordshire to help deliver the local QIPP plan and NHS organisations across the 
county are already working together to respond to this challenge.   

The Oxfordshire QIPP plan proposes changes to health care services that will provide high quality 
services to meet the health needs of residents, and that can be delivered within available 
resources. The QIPP plan drives the Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group’s (OCCG) 2012/13 
Operational Plan. It also incorporates NHS Hospital Trusts’ ‘cost improvement’ plans. 

The NHS in Oxfordshire is one of the lowest funded in the country, receiving approximately £1,300
per person per year from the Department of Health. Our population is comparatively healthy but 
our forward plans require that we take account of the following key factors: 

a. The population of Oxfordshire is getting older – 100% increase in over 85s by 2029; 43% 
increase in over 65s by 2029, 

b. Health inequalities exist – whilst the county is affluent there are pockets of long standing 
deprivation. 1 in 4 children in Oxford live in poverty with a 15 year life expectancy gap in 
best and worst wards within the county, 

c. There is a growing number of people with long term conditions – 1 in 4 people experience 
poor mental health; 1 in 7 people have a long term condition and this is rising due to 
lifestyle factors and obesity. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 91



 2

3. Programme Vision 

The QIPP plan has been developed to deliver the vision of improving the health and well-being of 
people in Oxfordshire by providing the best possible health services within the resources available. 
Collectively the NHS will do this by: 

  Helping people to manage their own health through health promotion and ill-health 
prevention initiatives. 

  Integrating health and social care teams in the community to ensure patients can access 
the right treatment when they need it. 

  Reviewing the delivery of hospital care, and moving services to the community where it is 
clinically appropriate. 

  Reviewing the provision of services that are shown to be less clinically ineffective and 
provide insufficient health benefits, and those that do not represent good value for money. 

To deliver QIPP, the OCCG is working with other NHS Trusts, Oxfordshire County Council and 
voluntary organisations in Oxfordshire on a range of projects including: 

  The Appropriate Care for Everyone (ACE) Programme to tackle the issue of delayed 
transfers of care and ensure older people are receiving the right care, at the right time and 
in the right place. 

  Improved access to expert patient programmes for people with long term conditions so they 
can better manage their condition. 

  Referral management within planned care for example the on-going implementation of a 
Musculoskeletal (MSK) Triage system which is for routine referrals for musculoskeletal 
problems. All referrals go through a consistent clinical triage system whereby they are 
assessed by a clinician; they are then either returned to the GP with advice on how to treat 
the patient in primary care for example their GP could be advised to administer joint 
injections as first line treatment; or they are referred onto a tier 2 triage which is a face to 
face appointment with a clinician who will look at the patient's problem and decide the 
diagnosis and treatment path or they are referred directly into secondary care to the 
provider of the patients choice. 

  The introduction of an Emergency Multidisciplinary Diagnosis and Triage Unit (EMDTU) 
operating Monday to Friday 08.00-18.00 based in Abingdon Community Hospital. The 
EMDTU gives urgent care patients access to speedy investigations and diagnosis in the 
community. Patients would be referred via their GP, the ambulance services, emergency 
departments and community health care professionals. The EMDTU would make the 
clinical decision whether patients referred to them for urgent care needed to go into an 
acute or community hospital or if they could have their care at home. 

4. Working with clinicians, patients, carers and the public 

The NHS is involving staff, GPs, clinicians and healthcare professionals to ensure decisions about 
which services to continue to provide and which to replace are based on evidence of clinical and 
cost effectiveness, local priorities and health care needs, and value for money. The OCCG is 
already working with local people to get feedback on proposed changes to services.  

As well as setting up a number of QIPP projects, the OCCG is also reviewing the funding of 
treatments that previously have been provided as a matter of routine and ensuring that doctors and 
health care professionals are adhering to best evidence and criteria for use of treatments and 
services.  These reviews are essential if we are to maintain high quality, local and sustainable NHS 
health services for the future. 

A recent example of this is the change in criteria for people to access non emergency patient 
transport. This service was being used by a wide range of patients many of whom could travel by 
bus or car. The patient transport service costs the NHS in Oxfordshire over £3 million a year and in 
the last financial year we spent £350,000 of this on patients who were able to use ‘walk on’ 
transport. That is patients who could travel by car and need no assistance in getting in and out of a 

Page 92



 3

vehicle. It was estimated that we could save as much as £200,000 by tightening up on who could 
use this service. The NHS worked with staff and members of the public including those using non-
emergency transport to seek feedback on the proposed changes to criteria. There was general 
consensus in favour of the proposed changes.  

Another example of this work is the review of the provision of NHS prescriptions for gluten-free 
foods. In Oxfordshire we spend £350,000 each year on prescriptions for gluten-free foods for 
people with coeliac disease. Twenty or thirty years ago, only a small range of ‘gluten-free’ foods 
were available and these were relatively expensive. To enable people to manage their disease, 
GPs were able to provide gluten-free foods on prescription. However, in recent years there have 
been considerable improvements in the types of foods available in shops and supermarkets. 
Nowadays there is a wide range of gluten-free foods in supermarkets, eg, gluten-free pasta, pizza 
bases, cakes and breads; there is a good choice of various makes of gluten-free food; the cost of 
gluten-free foods is not as high as it used to be; non-wheat, barley or rye based foods that provide 
carbohydrates are readily available, eg, potatoes and rice.

It has also been argued that the NHS does not provide food on prescription for other groups of 
patients whose diseases are associated with, or affected by, the type of food they eat.

For these reasons, we are considering whether or not the local NHS should continue to provide 
NHS prescriptions for gluten-free foods. We are seeking the views of local people - adults and 
parents/carers of children who have coeliac disease; patient support groups; doctors, dieticians 
and specialists - to find out what the impact might be if NHS prescriptions for gluten-free food were 
no longer funded. All the findings will be considered before a final decision is made. 

5. Summary 
Society is changing so health and social care systems need to change to respond to rising demand 
from an increasing older population, patient expectations and advances in technology and 
medicines. The challenge is to maintain and improve the quality of care for all patients within the 
finite resources we have available. NHS organisations and social care in Oxfordshire are already 
working together to respond to this challenge by improving productivity within the NHS locally, so 
doing the same but more efficiently and using staff to maximum effect and working collectively with 
the public to change the way that healthcare is delivered.  

The QIPP plan for Oxfordshire will be approved by OCCG and the NHS Buckinghamshire & 
Oxfordshire Cluster at the end of March 2012.  

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 
 
 
Oxfordshire Local Involvement Network 
Update for Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
meeting 19th January 2012 
 
Public, patient and carer concerns, issues and compliments collected through LINk 
engagement and outreach activities have resulted in the following projects being taken 
forwards. Further Health and Social care issues will be prioritised during this year.  
N.B. The following concise update refers to LINk projects which have a Health 
remit only, unless there is crossover, or joint commissioning, with Social Care 
services 
 
 
LINk Core Group – meeting in public 
 
The December quarterly meeting of the Core Group, which took place in Didcot, had 21 
attendees, mostly from South Oxfordshire.  Main topics under discussion were: the 
transition to HealthWatch and new Commissioning structures in relation to public 
engagement; OCC consultation on the procurement of HealthWatch; Personal Budgets; 
Enter and View visits to Care Homes; new partnership and project work with the LINk 
(see below) and the two forthcoming ‘Hearsay’ service user and carer events. 
All members are welcome to attend the next Core Group meeting in public, which will 
take place in North Oxfordshire (venue tba) on 15th March from 6.30pm – 9.00pm. 
 
 
Ongoing Health projects and engagement: 
 
A Mental Health ‘Hearsay’ event is taking place on 12th January 2012. This is a 
replacement for the regular Mental Health ‘Sounding Board’, which has been a feature 
of SCS engagement over the last 2 years. In order for recommendations and comments 
from service users and carers, obtained through recent Sounding Boards, to have a 
more consistent and robust means of follow up with service providers and 
commissioners, it was proposed that the Hearsay model be incorporated into the 
existing engagement structure. Concerns and issues which have arisen from comments 
collected by the LINk before and during the event will be considered in partnership with 
Directors and Service Leads from Oxford Health, Oxfordshire PCT, Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Social Care.  Topics have been developed in the planning 
round with a final report being taken forward in the form of an action plan agreed with 
Oxford Health and Commissioners, with a timeline of updates against progress to be 
agreed. A verbal report from the event will be provided for members. 
 
GP Patient Practice Groups and public engagement 
LINk is planning an approach, to selected GP Practices, in order to gather information 
about their own strategies for patient & public engagement and to offer a means of 
developing this in partnership, supported by the LINk and its network. A pilot proposal is 
currently being discussed with a Practice. 
 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 95



 

 
 

 
Other projects 
 
‘Enter and View’ visits to Care Homes 
 
A new information and training session took place on 9th December for ‘Enter and View’ 
participants in order to provide statutory authorisation for newly recruited visitors and an 
opportunity to review the process for those who carried out visits last year. A second 
series of visits to Care Homes, selected by provider, size and geography, will take place 
from the end of January 2012 onwards, followed by a second report. The emphasis will 
be on quality standards of reporting and sharing recommendations with the Care Home 
providers together with Social and Community Services. 
 
 
New project proposals, supplied to the LINk Priorities and Finance Groups, have been 
accepted from Oxfordshire Wheel, to partner a large service user and carer-led event 
about Self-Directed Support being planned for 1st March 2012. The main aims and 
objectives of the event are: to share service user and carer experiences of SDS; to 
provide a showcase for related organisations to promote what they do; provide a 
promotion opportunity for HealthWatch; gather feedback with regards to the 
effectiveness of SDS so far and what would improve it in the future. 
 
A proposal from Oxfordshire Family Support Network has been approved to continue 
the LINk-funded work begun last year in developing further understanding of the needs 
of older carers who care for family members who have learning disabilities 
and to investigate the best way to deliver an older carer support service. 
 
Further applications for project work have been received from Omega (ME Support 
Group) and OxSun (Mental Health Service User Network) and will be considered for 
support shortly. 
 
 
HealthWatch 
Members will be aware that the Dept of Health has postponed the introduction of Local 
HealthWatch until April 2013. Lisa Gregory, Taking Part Team Manger, will attend to 
provide an update from the OCC consultation, which concluded in December and 
proposals for the next steps in the light of the delayed implementation. 
 
 
 
 
 
Adrian Chant (LINk Locality Manager)  
01865 883488 
Update 09/01/2012 
 

Page 96


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Public Health
	6 Community Mental Health Teams; update on progress and future plans
	HOSC update paper 19th Jan

	7 Early Intervention Hubs and health matters
	8 Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) programme and planned care disinvestment
	9 Oxfordshire LINk Group Œ Information Share

